

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

EVENING COMMUNITY MEETING

Thursday, August 9, 2018 6:30 p.m.

Northeast Guidance Center, Wellness Academy

Building A

2900 Connor (Fifth Precinct)

Detroit, Michigan

1 COMMISSIONERS:

2

3 WILLIE BELL, Chairperson (Dist. 4)

4 ELIZABETH BROOKS, Commissioner At-Large

5 WILLIAM M. DAVIS (Dist. 7)

6 JIM HOLLEY, Commissioner At-Large

7 DARRYL D. BROWN, Vice-Chair, Commissioner (Dist. 1)

8 EVA GARZA DEWAELSCHE, Commissioner At-Large

9

10 GREGORY HICKS, Secretary to the Board

11 ROBERT BROWN, Executive Manager

12

13

14 REPRESENTING OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OF POLICE:

15 Assistant Chief James White

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1 Detroit, Michigan

2 August 9, 2018

3 At or about 6:26 p.m.

4

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Good evening.

6 ATTENDEES: Good evening.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: I want to say good evening
8 again. It's good to see you all hear. We have people
9 still coming through the door. If they would take their
10 seats we would appreciate it. I am Police Commissioner
11 Willie Bell. I represent District Four. I serve as chair
12 of the board and will be conducting our meeting today. On
13 behalf of the Board, for those in attendance thank you for
14 joining us. For people viewing this meeting on your
15 government cable channel thank you for viewing our meeting.

16 And the invocation, the Detroit Police chaplain
17 is to provide the invocation. Please. Thank you. And I
18 think this center mic is where you're going to be right
19 there.

20 (At 6:34 p.m., invocation given)

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Chaplain Corp.,
22 would you go back to the mic. Can you make some brief
23 remarks on the role of the Chaplain Corps, please. I don't
24 think I fully realize that in one of our community
25 meetings. I'll take advantage of letting -- in terms of

1 you speaking to that.

2 Am I getting feedback on this mic or something?

3 CHAPLAIN: Yes, sir, so the Detroit Police
4 Chaplain Corps, for those that are not familiar, Detroit
5 has the largest and oldest police Chaplain Corps in the
6 nation. We stand right now at just under 100 police
7 chaplains. Each police precinct has at least three to four
8 police chaplains committed to serve at each roll call and
9 really on call for every officer. We support in multiple
10 ways; really at the call of the police officer. We do
11 ride-alongs. We pray at the roll calls. Actually we're
12 here at the police commission meeting. But also any time
13 there's a shooting we are called. If there is any type of
14 incident where an officer is in need just for conversation,
15 we'll meet them for coffee and have conversation with them,
16 pray with them, marry them. Unfortunately oftentimes being
17 at funerals as well.

18 So our role is really just of support and one of
19 presence to really support the police officers that really
20 don't get their just do oftentimes. So oftentimes citizens
21 don't really appreciate them, and so we show our support.
22 The National Night Out, which we just had this week. We
23 also supported that event as well. Officers are doing a
24 great job, and we just are there to undergird them as much
25 as we can.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: One question. What is the
2 size of your membership as far as the Chaplain Corps?

3 CHAPLAIN: I want to say right now we're at about
4 70 police chaplains. Our goal for the end of this year is
5 to hit the 100 mark to just make sure we're covering. We
6 know that there are plenty of new officers coming on board,
7 and so we want to make sure that we have enough police
8 chaplains. And if you are interested or if you know anyone
9 that's interested in becoming a police chaplain, I'll be
10 around. You can see me, and I can get an application to
11 you.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. We really
13 appreciate that. That sort of enlightened us in terms of
14 the role of the Chaplain Corps. As you say it's been
15 long-standing.

16 CHAPLAIN: Yes.

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: And thank you, because we're
18 all standing in the need of prayer.

19 CHAPLAIN: Yes, sir. Thank you. Appreciate you.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners starting to my
21 left, would you introduce yourself, please.

22 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: Eva Garza Dewaelsche,
23 Commissioner At-Large.

24 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: Jim Holley, Commissioner
25 At-Large.

1 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Elizabeth Brooks, At-Large.

2 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: William Davis, District
3 Seven.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, commissioners. We
5 have the Commissioner Willie Burch excused, Commissioner
6 Willie Burton, and Commissioner Lisa Carter. And we
7 might -- do we have a quorum, Mr. Hicks.

8 MR. HICKS: No, we do not, Mr. Chair.

9 THE COURT: So we need that commissioner to show
10 up.

11 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: You want to let them know
12 who you are and who you represent.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: I'll tell you what we can do.
14 I'm going to start to my right, with Commissioner Davis.
15 Can you give brief remarks as far as what your role with
16 the Board and some brief background on yourself?

17 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Well hello everyone. My
18 name is William Davis, the elected police commissioner for
19 District Seven. I have been a community activist for
20 probably longer than some of you people have been living.
21 I'm a city of Detroit retiree. I worked for the Water
22 Department, the waste water treatment plant, for 34 years.
23 And I think that all of us should try to be as active as we
24 can and know what's going on in our communities. I'm a
25 strong advocate for citizen involvement. And that's the

1 main role that the Police Department Board of Police
2 Commissioners is, that's to be an oversight. So we're
3 going to make sure we don't have the problems that other
4 communities have had.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Commissioner.
6 Commissioner Brooks.

7 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Oh, gosh, I don't know
8 where to start. I think a lot of you know I've done a lot
9 of community work, mostly in the arts. But when I was
10 asked to become a police commissioner I first didn't think
11 I could do it. But I find out that working with recruiting
12 puts me right back in the communities where I worked with
13 the arts. And I truly enjoy it. And I'm looking forward
14 to really really recruiting with the committee as many
15 police officers as we possibly can. So my thing is help
16 where you can; don't complain; don't judge people; get out
17 there and help; do volunteer work. And I'm looking at our
18 police attorney for the police commissioners because he
19 always helps me with recruiting. So thank you very much.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Commissioner
21 Brooks. The man who needs no introduction to my left,
22 Commissioner Jim Holley.

23 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: I'm just a nobody trying to
24 tell everybody about somebody who can save everybody.
25 That's it.

1 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: Good evening. I'm
2 Commissioner Eva Garza Dewaelsche, and I'm a Detroit
3 resident. I love Detroit. Was born and raised in
4 Southwest Detroit. Spent most of my years there.
5 Graduated from Western High School, Wayne State University.
6 So all my education was in public institutions.

7 I'm a form -- I'm also a former police
8 commissioner in the Archer administration. So this is my
9 second term as a police commissioner. I love it. I love
10 helping the police department, and I love working with
11 Commissioner Betty Brooks on the recruitment committee.
12 That's one of the things that we really really are working
13 hard, to not only fill all the vacant positions that are
14 available in the police at the present time but to make
15 sure that we are recruiting really really wonderful people
16 that are committed to the city of Detroit. We try to
17 emphasize recruiting in Detroit so that we are getting
18 Detroiters applying for the jobs. It's a little difficult,
19 so we need help. Help us if you can. I know Commissioner
20 Brooks is always asking at every meeting for help in our
21 recruitment efforts. And we do have a recruitment
22 committee members in the police department that we're
23 working very closely with that are just committed to making
24 sure that we have the very best that work for this
25 department. Thank you.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Commissioner
2 Dewaelsche. I'm going to introduce my board secretary,
3 Gregory Hicks, and he's going to introduce the staff.

4 MR. HICKS: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I
5 do want to just indicate for the record just prior to
6 introducing the staff that for tonight's s meeting Sergeant
7 Quinn is doing the -- is taking the meeting, Media Services
8 is providing audio visual work for this evening, and Donna
9 Williams is the court reporter.

10 And I -- normally in the introductions Mr. Robert
11 Brown is seated directly next to me. Mr. Brown is away and
12 will also not be with us next week as well. And in his
13 stead, of course, Theresa Blossom who is our Media Outreach
14 Coordinator will be joining us and playing -- performing
15 the kind of functions that he normally performs in this
16 meeting.

17 And then I would go to the front row on the
18 right-hand side. We have Ms. Johnson who's our fiscal;
19 Ms. White, who is policy. And then swing over a little bit
20 then with Mr. Wyrick, who's in the second row on the left
21 side I guess, he is the attorney for the Board. And, of
22 course, Bridget Lamar, who is the interim director of the
23 department's Human Resources Department is here. Ms. Lamar
24 will also be making a presentation in tonight's meeting.
25 And with that we would go to Dr. Polly McCalister who is

1 the chief investigator for the Office of the Chief
2 Investigator. And she'll not only introduce herself but
3 also other members of her staff who are present.

4 MS. MCCALISTER: Good evening board, Assistant
5 Chief White. I'm Polly McCalister, chief investigator, and
6 attending tonight's meeting with me is Supervising
7 Investigator Akbar, Investigator Nichols, Investigator
8 Stanton, Investigator Colture, and Investigator James.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Chief
10 Investigator. And I just want to take this opportunity now
11 to introduce the young man to my far left, Assistant Chief
12 James White, one of the key people that work with Chief
13 Craig. It's my understanding that Chief Craig is
14 celebrating his birthday today. Is that true?

15 CHIEF OF POLICE: That is correct, sir.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Just give the chief a hand
17 clap.

18 (APPLAUSE)

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: And the chief had notified us
20 we could have had the birthday party right here. It would
21 have been no problem. Bake the cake also. I wish the
22 chief the best on his birthday. So that is a milestone
23 that we should celebrate, and I wish him the best on your
24 behalf also.

25 Assistant Chief White.

1 AC WHITE: Good evening Board. And the chief
2 sends his regrets, but we told him he could take the day
3 off to celebrate his birthday. Happy to be here. I will
4 reserve my comments for my report out --

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

6 AC WHITE: -- on it a little bit later if you'd
7 like me to introduce the staff.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Definitely. Definitely.

9 AC WHITE: I will start -- at the first, I'm
10 going to let everybody introduce themselves.

11 (At 6:46 p.m, self-introduction by Office of the
12 Chief staff)

13 AC WHITE: I see a couple very important MPOs
14 that would like to introduce themselves as well. Where
15 they at?

16 P.O. MOXEY: Good evening everyone. Officer
17 Karen Moxey.

18 AC WHITE: Thank you very much.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you Assistant Chief
20 White.

21 Now I would like to -- do we have any elected
22 officials or any representatives of elected officials? And
23 I see one of our representatives of the mayor. And she
24 represents District Four. One of those hard charging, hard
25 working managers I had the pleasure of working with. It's

1 been a year and half now. And it's almost four years,
2 because you hit the ground running from day one. I really
3 appreciate that. And I want for her to introduce herself.
4 Ms. Letty Azar.

5 Would you come to the mic and introduce yourself
6 and your role in terms of your capacity? Thank you.

7 MS. AZAR: Yep, absolutely. And good evening,
8 and welcome to District Four. I'm Letty Azar. I'm your
9 District Four representative with the Department of
10 Neighborhoods. Thank you, Commissioner.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: And thank you. I want to say
12 to the audience for those in attendance. I know at
13 District Four we all know you, and if not something is
14 basically wrong. If they don't know the district manager,
15 they don't know the NPOs -- I know they know the commander
16 and the captain of each precinct, but they should know the
17 person who represents the mayor in each district and also a
18 deputy person in that capacity. So I thank you for your
19 service ongoing. We really appreciate you.

20 MS. AZAR: Thank you.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: And thanks for coming out.

22 MS. AZAR: Likewise.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Do we have any other
24 representatives of any other VIPs? All of you are VIPs, so
25 we won't have you stand. Just give yourself a round of

1 applause.

2 (APPLAUSE)

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: I do want to recognize, if
4 this is your first meeting would you stand please. If this
5 is your first meeting ever in terms of the Board of Police
6 Commissioners. Please give your name.

7 P.O. ROTH: I'm Judith.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Real loud and clear.

9 P.O. ROTH: Judith Roth.

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

11 P.O. ROTH: Neighborhood Police officer.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: You are no stranger to me.
13 I'm so glad to see that you were promoted to NPO, because
14 you're a souvenir and you do an outstanding job.

15 P.O. ROTH: Thank you, sir.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

17 MS. GRACEN: Doris Gracen (Phonetic).

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for coming out.

19 MS. BROOKS: Banita Brooks.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Ms. Brooks, thank you for
21 coming out.

22 MR. COOPER: Dock Cooper.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Cooper.

24 MR. COOPER: Yes, sir.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for coming out.

1 Let's give them a round of applause.

2 (APPLAUSE)

3 MS. NOBLES: Nanny Nobles.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Ms. Nobles.

5 MS. NOBLES: Nanny Nobles. And this is my first
6 time living in this district.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for coming out.

8 Okay, we're going to move right on. We still do
9 not have a quorum. I don't know if we're going to have a
10 quorum, so we will dispense with the business portion of
11 calling the meeting to order because we cannot do that
12 without a quorum, as you all know.

13 All right, I'm going to give my report at this
14 time. I think we covered all the bases, right Mr. Hicks?

15 MR. HICKS: Yes.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay, thank you. On behalf
17 of the Board I want to express -- I'm trying not to
18 overload this mic or whatever. On behalf of the Board I
19 want to express our concern and support for fallen and
20 injured officers. Our concern for officer safety and
21 citizen detection continues. Our Board continues listing
22 injured officers. I would ask that Assistant Chief James
23 White during his remarks to provide us with any additional
24 information related to injured and fallen officers,
25 including Officer Shukur who was recently injured in the

1 line of duty, as you well know.

2 The Board of Police Commissioners meet every week
3 except for Thanksgiving and Christmas holiday. We meet at
4 police headquarters in a regular session three weeks in the
5 month on August -- three weeks in the month on Thursday --
6 can you hear me -- we meet at 3:00 p.m. We also meet in
7 the community every second Thursday of the month at 6:30
8 p.m. in a meeting of this nature throughout the city of
9 Detroit. Today is our eighth community meeting.

10 The Board seats to meet in every district within
11 the city of Detroit. We appreciate your cooperation in
12 opening of various facilities to accommodate our meetings.

13 What we would like to ask at this time is Lisa
14 Marszalec, the vice director of Adult Services. I did not
15 get your name for correct pronouncing. Would you just echo
16 that. I didn't meet you earlier. I apologize.

17 MS. MARSZALEC: Good evening everybody. My name
18 is Lisa Marszalec, and I'm the Adult Services program
19 director for Northeast Guidance Center. And on behalf of
20 Northeast Guidance Center and my president and CEO Sherry
21 McRill, I want to welcome the Board of Police Commissioners
22 to Northeast as well all of our police officers in the
23 audience and our community members.

24 We are so excited to be hosting this event. And
25 I just want to take a couple of minutes, maybe about five,

1 to show everybody a brief video about the services
2 Northeast has to provide, and then talk to you about one of
3 my most favorite programs, Community and Police Partnership
4 Advocacy. And I'm a wiggler, so standing in front of this
5 is going to be kind of tough, so just bear with me.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: While we're waiting, I'd like
7 to introduce Jay Henderson, the president of the Fifth
8 Precinct Police Community Meeting Coordination. Mr. Jay
9 Henson, would you stand please. Just give him a shout out.

10 (APPLAUSE)

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's crucial that we all in
12 the various precincts have the community leaders of his
13 stature to relates to the community and the police. And
14 they meet every month on the first Wednesday of the month
15 in the Samaritan Center. For all of you that's in the
16 fifth precinct, you know that. But you need to come out to
17 the meeting at 6:300. It's held timely with refreshments
18 and a little activity. Then the business meeting starts,
19 and we're normally out in a timely manner through Jay
20 Henderson's leadership. And some of you are here. Thank
21 you.

22 (At 6:53 p.m., video presentation given)

23 MS. MARSZALEC: Well while we have some technical
24 difficulties, I'm just going to keep it moving to not waste
25 anybody's time. So I just want to talk briefly about our

1 Community and Police Partnership Advocacy Program here at
2 Northeast.

3 It's a two-fold program that incorporates both a
4 co-responder method along with training for police officers
5 at the Linwood Academy. And we do 40 hour block and are
6 M-Code certified. So we have had a partnership and have
7 been working with Detroit Police for, gosh, roughly about
8 16 years now. We started working alongside the academy in
9 2006. And for this year alone just in the third quarter
10 we've trained 1,697 officers. So we are very proud and
11 very excited about that.

12 For our co-responder program, we have begun
13 working very closely with the neighborhood police officers
14 in precincts five, seven, eleven and Downtown Services.
15 And through the possibilities of the Detroit Wayne Mental
16 Health Authority, they are going to extend our grant and
17 include an additional \$132,000 which we are hoping to add
18 additional three more co-responders to get somebody
19 full-time into the Fourth, the Ninth Precinct and the
20 Eleventh. So those are our targets for the upcoming year.

21 Also we're hoping to focus on what's called CIT
22 or the Crisis Intervention Teen Model. And that will
23 incorporate a co-responder and a police officer and allow
24 them to work together. And we will build access centers if
25 this becomes a mobility where officers are able to take

1 persons suffering with severe and personal mental illness
2 or individuals with severe cognitive and developmental
3 disabilities to a location outside of the hospital that
4 they can get assessments, get assistance, get housing if
5 need be, get employment options. Because what we find is
6 -- and I wish you all could see my PowerPoint -- there's a
7 trend where back in the early '90s persons suffering with
8 mental illness used to be housed in facilities, right? You
9 had places like Northville and the hospitals. And with the
10 shutting down of those, we found that what happens was
11 everybody now winds up in jail. So there's the same exact
12 number of folks in jail, and it's overcrowding it and it's
13 not serving folks needs. Right?

14 And so what we want to take a look at is what are
15 the crisis issues? How do we address those issues as a
16 mental health organization partnering with our community
17 and with our police, with our citizens and really focused
18 to make some changes in those areas so that we are truly
19 giving back and treating what's really going on and helping
20 people start down there recovery journey.

21 Okay, so that's really our expectation and our
22 hope for the next couple years. Okay, and we're really
23 going to need to lean on our officers and our community for
24 support. So forums like these, I am especially grateful to
25 be here today and to be able to take part in this.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Thank you. This
2 has been an ongoing subject matter for the Board, for Chief
3 Craig, and for the city of Detroit as you well know. So we
4 really appreciate the opportunity to come in this
5 particular facility that offers that type of service,
6 because it's critical. As you say, it impacts the criminal
7 justice. Not just in Detroit or the state of Michigan but
8 throughout the nation in terms of the issues that we're
9 dealing with. So thank you. Thank you. And we appreciate
10 you hosting us this evening. Thank you again.

11 MS. MARSZALEC: Thank you. And any time we can
12 be of service, please just reach out.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

14 To my right our vice chair just joined me, Darryl
15 Brown from District One on the east -- westside. I almost
16 said the eastside. Okay, you have the opportunity -- all
17 the commissioners had an opportunity to make a remark if
18 you care to.

19 COMMISSIONER BROWN: First I'd like to apologize
20 for being late. The weather, you know, plays a very
21 integral role in trying to get from place to place. But I
22 am Darryl Brown, vice chair from District One, and I'm glad
23 to be here.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

25 MR. HICKS: Mr. Chair, you have a quorum.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. We have a quorum;
2 so, therefore, the Chair would entertain a motion to
3 approve the agenda for this evening's meeting.

4 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So moved.

5 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: Support.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly moved and
7 supported. Those in favor aye.

8 THE BOARD: Aye.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?

10 I didn't say discussion, but I think we're okay
11 with that.

12 The next item of business would be proving the
13 minutes from August 2, 2018.

14 What is your pleasure.

15 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So moved.

16 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: Moved for adoption.

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Can I get a second?

18 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Support.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly moved and
20 supported.

21 Discussion?

22 Those in favor, aye.

23 THE BOARD: Aye.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed? Motion
25 carried.

1 I just want to continue on with my remarks. But
2 I do want to welcome all of you as the sitting Chair and
3 also as your designated elected police commissioner for
4 District Four. And most of you even know I was elected in
5 2013 and started serving in 2014, and re-elected in 2017,
6 now serving 2018.

7 District Four, as you well goes from the river
8 all the way up to Six Mile Road. And there's breakdown in
9 your handout this evening. I want to indicate that there
10 should be a newsletter in the back of the room which is a
11 very historic piece. It gives you a breakdown of the
12 overall of Board of Police Commissioners. I don't really
13 have to elaborate. There's something in writing.

14 And one of the issues -- one of the concerns that
15 we have is that I think it's crucial that we profile the
16 commission at every opportunity. There are so many
17 Detroiters do not know that we have a board of police
18 commissioners; that the 2012 charter expanded that to
19 elected commissioners in that time frame. We had seven
20 elected and four appointed by the mayor. So it's crucial
21 that we do a better job, and we have an opportunity now
22 with better staff, to promote the Board of Police
23 Commissioners, especially for you to know your
24 commissioners and that the Board is sort of crucial.

25 And on that note, I guess that's my introduction.

1 It covers the Fifth Precinct, also the Ninth Precinct. And
2 I see our council person who needs no introduction for
3 those in District Four, but Councilman Spivey. He might
4 want to come forward and say hello.

5 This is District Four. You're my councilman.
6 You're my neighbor. So come on up to the mic right there.
7 You got to say hello.

8 COUNCILMAN SPIVEY: Good evening everyone. Sorry
9 for my tardiness. We had a meeting in Yorkshire Woods. I
10 want to welcome the Board of Police Commissioners here, all
11 of our police department, those who do a fine job, and my
12 neighborhood and Chair, Brother Bell. Thank you all for
13 being here in District Four. Talk long, because it's
14 raining outside. So maybe we can dry up before we leave
15 here. But thank you. Have a good night, and God bless you
16 all.

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Councilman Spivey.
18 Thanks Spivey.

19 I'm going to continue with my remarks by saying
20 that under the Detroit City Charter, Article 7, Chapter --
21 I'm sorry.

22 As I was saying, under the Detroit City Charter,
23 Article 7, Chapter 8 of the Detroit Board of Police
24 Commissioners is here -- empowered to provide civilian
25 oversight and supervise control of the police department.

1 How does civilian oversight or law enforcement
2 help you as a citizen within our community? We protect the
3 civil rights of citizen. Oversight organizations like the
4 Board of Police Commissioners are at the forefront of
5 investigating, reviewing and auditing any type of case with
6 citizen complaint and patterns of operation by a police
7 agency to eliminate misconduct, discriminatory police
8 practice, and unnecessary use of force by police.

9 Our work is based on the public in supporting
10 effective policing. Mutual trust and respect between the
11 police and the community is critical towards increasing the
12 quality of life for residents indigenous to Detroit.
13 Distrust impedes police effectiveness.

14 The Board of Police Commissioners exist to
15 provide civilian oversight for the work of the Detroit
16 Police Department. As a board we receive and investigate
17 noncriminal citizen complaints. We monitor operation of
18 the department and work with the mayor and the chief of
19 police to make or modify police policy.

20 Our objective is the same as the city of Detroit,
21 to provide for the best use of your tax dollars to improve
22 the quality of life within our city. As a board, we bring
23 a unique perspective to policing; the eyes and viewpoint of
24 the citizens -- civilians. I want to say that again. The
25 eyes and the viewpoint of the civilians.

1 The principle of civilian oversight is as old and
2 important as all the founding principles of our democracy.
3 So I should the democratic process. Separation of power
4 between -- unintelligible -- allows for accountability,
5 transparency, right to appearance, and citizen control.
6 These principles are important nationally as well as
7 locally.

8 Today we have two information presentations to
9 the Board. The first is our monthly personnel report from
10 interim director of DPD Human Resources Ms. Bridget Lamar.
11 IN the monthly report you receive information on the
12 department recruitment and processing of police candidates.
13 The police department is hiring, as you well know. We also
14 receive information on separations from the department and
15 other important data related to maintaining an effective
16 police force.

17 The second presentation is the field report from
18 the Fifth Precinct Commander. Eric Ewing and Captain
19 Melissa Gardner are here to speak on behalf of the Fifth
20 Precinct. Captain Gardner will be making the remarks to
21 the Board. We hope they will discuss what some of the
22 crime hotspots and array of crime fighting strategies they
23 have used to address crime in the Fifth Precinct.

24 Under the chief's report I would ask Assistant
25 Chief James White to review the CompStat report reflecting

1 crime and law enforcement activity for the last reporting
2 period. I would also ask information on the duty status of
3 Assistant Arnold Williams. Chief Craig contacted me
4 several days ago indicating Assistant Chief Williams is
5 stepping down from his position.

6 First, we'd like to thank Assistant Chief Arnold
7 Williams for his longstanding service and leadership of the
8 department. His direct and professional style will be
9 missed at our meeting. If there is any additional
10 information on DC Williams, I would request an update as
11 well. Information on AC Williams' reassignment.

12 I would also ask Assistant Chief White for an
13 update on the recent newspaper article relating to a 15
14 year old case involving James Matthews. I understand from
15 news report that a arrangements are being made to return
16 Mr. Matthews to Detroit for adjudication on several crimes
17 that DTD believes he committed in Detroit.

18 I would also ask Assistant Chief White, who is
19 responsible for the department support service, for an
20 update on construction or renovation -- unintelligible --
21 location. As it's been stated in the past, the Office of
22 the Chief Investigator will be relocated to this renovated
23 facility following operation upgrade to the building. A
24 report on this work would be helpful in scheduling the move
25 with the least possible disruption in ability to take

1 citizen complaints.

2 I also want to point out that in your board
3 package the CompStat data for the Fifth Precinct. The
4 information was sent in as part of your choosing package,
5 Board members. I hope each of you had an opportunity to
6 review that CompStat report of the Fifth Precinct.

7 Also want to congratulate all the people who
8 participated in the resent election on August 7. While we
9 get some winners and others who did not win, the basic
10 democracy -- democratic process, which is the envy of the
11 world, is working at the local level. Again my
12 congratulations to all who was elected. I want to extend a
13 personal note that our immediate past Chair, Lisa Carter,
14 is nominee for the District State Rep Tyrone Carter. I
15 wish that family the best.

16 Towards the end of the meeting, we'll have oral
17 communication. Please make sure you print your name on a
18 speaker's card located in the back of the table or can be
19 obtained by seeing Ms. Theresa Blossom to my far right.
20 And she's holding up the cards. She needs your cards
21 before beginning of public comments. And we appreciate
22 that, your involvement in terms of the process of giving
23 you two minutes to speak.

24 Now we're going to move on to resolutions. It's
25 the next item of business. I'm going to ask Mr. James

1 Jackson, Jr. to come forward.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Turn around and face the
3 audience. Face the audience. I normally don't have this
4 privilege. I always give this to another commissioner.
5 But since this is District Four, and I want to give him a
6 little -- this is a personal friend of mine from DPD. But
7 I'm going to get right into the resolution a honoring Mr.
8 James L. Jackson, Jr.

9 WHEREAS Mr. James L. Jackson, Jr. is the oldest of four
10 children born to his proud parents, Juanita and
11 James Jackson. He attended Northeastern High
12 School --

13 I want to say Northeastern High School. That's my high
14 school.

15 -- during the summer of 1966, he attended Greer
16 Technical School in Braidwood, Illinois. He
17 attended Port Huron Junior college with a law
18 enforcement focus. During the next three years,
19 he attended Port Huron Junior College, Henry Ford
20 Community College, and worked back and forth
21 between Chrysler and Ford Motor Company; and

22 WHEREAS in 1969 Mr. Jackson joined the Detroit Police
23 Department where he worked at various
24 assignments, including the 10th Precinct what you
25 call TMU, Tactical Mobile Unit, 13th Precinct,

1 Central District Morality Unit, Internal Controls
2 Bureau/MI Attorney General Organize Crime
3 Strikeforce, later retiring honorably from the
4 Gang Squad Unit; and

5 WHEREAS After retiring he operated Jack Rabbit Towing and
6 the U.S. Scream Machine Ice Cream Trucks.

7 Kids still come forward to interact with this
8 young man. We're talking about grandkids now.

9 He has remained loyal to the City of Detroit and
10 to its citizens by becoming a community activist.
11 He has held membership in the Jefferson Chalmers
12 Business Association, and Jefferson East Business
13 Association. He is also a member of the
14 Jefferson Chalmers Home Owners Association, an
15 active member of the 5th Precinct Community
16 Relations Council, and presently serve as
17 Chairperson of the Jefferson Chalmers Citizens'
18 District Council; and

19 WHEREAS During his steeler career with Detroit Police
20 Department he was a member of the 2nd all black
21 Cruiser Crew in 19 -- this is 1972. You have to
22 understand the history of DPD. All black
23 cruiser, at the 13th Precinct. In 1982 he was
24 awarded the Police Officer of the Year Award for
25 the 13th Precinct. In 2018 Mr. Jackson

1 co-starred in documentary film about Detroit,
2 entitled "The Street Fighting Men".

3 Had an opportunity to see it at DIA, and it was
4 just outstanding. They got some recognition in New York on
5 a national level. And you wouldn't believe what they were
6 out there working on your behalf as a concerned citizen.

7 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

8 RESOLVED That the Detroit Board of Police Commissioners
9 speaking for the members of the city of Detroit
10 and the Detroit Police Department, acknowledge
11 the community activism, hardworking, committed
12 support of Mr. James Jackson, better known as
13 Jack Rabbit in our circle in the community. His
14 service, generous spirit and devotion to
15 improving the quality of life for all citizens in
16 the Fifth Precinct and throughout the city of
17 Detroit, merits our highest regard.

18 Signed by the Board of Police Commissioners. Ten
19 strong.

20 Thank you, Mr. Jackson "Jack Rabbit". Thank you.
21 (PHOTO SHOOT)

22 MR. JACKSON: Thank you all very much. I don't
23 have anything else to say. Thank you.

24 (APPLAUSE)

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Our next resolution is to

1 Bishop-Elect Darell Reed. And that's going to be by Vice
2 Chair Mr. Brown.

3 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Bishop-Elect Mr. Reed.

4 (APPLAUSE)

5 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Resolution Honoring
6 Bishop-Elect DaRell Andre Reed.

7 WHEREAS Bishop-Elect Dr. Darell Andre Reed has served,
8 since 2010 as Pastor of the Spirit of Love
9 Church, after first serving as Interim Pastor
10 when his father the late Rev. Leroy Reed, Jr. had
11 taken ill. Not officially responding to the call
12 of ministry until his early 30's, Pastor Reed
13 started teaching Sunday school at the age of
14 nine; and

15 WHEREAS Pastor Reed loves education, he has taken
16 Clinical Pastoral Education at DMC Sinai-Grace
17 Hospital. He has degrees in Theology, Business
18 Management, Biblical Counseling, and a Doctoral
19 degree in Theology; and

20 WHEREAS Pastor Reed flows in the gift of healing -- touch
21 me -- dream interpretation and working miracles.
22 The Spirit of Love Church is known as "The
23 Atmosphere of Miracles". Their slogan is
24 "Experience the Love & Love the Experience"; and

25 WHEREAS Pastor Reed sees the whole community as his

1 parish. He has daily meetings trying to help the
2 community, finds employment for his members, make
3 new homeowners, get students back into school,
4 and find opportunities for those who want to
5 attend college; and

6 WHEREAS Pastor Reed is currently the President of
7 Morningside Neighborhood Association, he partners with
8 Habitat for Humanity who has built over one hundred twenty
9 houses in the Morningside community, U-Snap-Back, who has
10 built over one hundred houses. He is a member of the Joint
11 Employment Procurement Advisory Board. He helped write the
12 Legislation of Ordinances that has been adopted by the City
13 of Detroit.

14 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

15 RESOLVED That the Detroit Board of Police Commissioners
16 speaking for the citizens of the city of Detroit
17 and the Detroit Police Department, acknowledges
18 the dedication, vision, hardworking, committed
19 support of Bishop-Elect Dr. DaRell Reed. His
20 service, generous spirit and devotion to
21 improving the quality of life for all citizens in
22 the Fifth Precinct and throughout the city of
23 Detroit, merits our highest regard.

24 Signed the Board of Police Commissioners.

25 Adopted by all of these ten -- well six, seven of them

1 today. The Board as a whole, we commend you Bishop.

2 (APPLAUSE)

3 DR. REED: Yeah, my mother.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Come on up.

5 (PHOTO SHOOT)

6 DR. REED: Now ya'll remember I'm a he preacher
7 and ya'll gave me the mic. I want to thank the Fifth
8 Precinct, my mother who's here with me, also one of the
9 mothers of our church. We were jogging this morning with
10 the seniors, and she can run. So if you run, she will
11 catch you. And also to my lovely wife who's at home with
12 our children. She could not make it. You know, we have
13 babysitter issues sometimes. But again, thank you
14 everyone.

15 (APPLAUSE)

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: I just want to say that
17 Pastor Reed is one of those people who does not stay within
18 the confines of the church, which you heard in terms of the
19 resolution. But he's one of the major focus persons who
20 dealt with the marijuana dispensary throughout this
21 particular neighborhood and throughout the city. So I just
22 want to appreciate his work and his ongoing involvement.
23 And he's also president of Morningside, the community which
24 is active in the city of Detroit. One of those historic
25 community involvements. So he's one of those persons who

1 not just lay hands on people, but he actually gets to
2 moving.

3 Our next presenter will be our immediate
4 Vice-Chair Eva Dewaelsche. Commissioner Eva Dewaelsche.

5 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: Thank you. It's my
6 honor to present this resolution honoring Ms. Judith Ann
7 Justin Roth. Could you please come up.

8 (APPLAUSE)

9 WHEREAS Ms. Judith Ann Justin Roth graduated from North
10 Collins Central High School in New York, and IBM
11 Data Processing School in Buffalo, New York, and
12 earned an Associate Degree from Oakland Community
13 College in Royal Oak, Michigan; and

14 WHEREAS Ms. Roth is a required deputy court clerk who
15 worked at Frank Murphy Hall of Justice for 33
16 years. She had also been employed by the Federal
17 Government as a member for the Military Draft
18 Board for two years and four years with the
19 Veterans' Administration Hospital; and

20 WHEREAS Ms. Roth has been an active member in the Fifth
21 Precinct Community, Morningside-East English
22 Village-Cornerstone (MEC) Neighborhood Patrol, and East
23 English Village Block Club. She is a member of the Detroit
24 Horse Power, Preservation Detroit, and Michigan Horse
25 Council.

1 Am I saying that right, horse?

2 MS. ROTH: Horse council. We got plenty of them.

3 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Wow, that's nice.

4 MS. ROTH: Thank you.

5 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: And

6 WHEREAS Ms. Roth's affiliations include the National
7 Association for the Advancement of the Colored
8 People (NAACP) and the Black Women Lawyers of
9 MICHIGAN. Her civic involvement includes
10 Department of Elections Inspector, Notary Public
11 and Precinct Delegate; and

12 WHEREAS Ms. Roth is an active participant in Fifth
13 Precinct projects. She dedicates several hours
14 assisting with Police Week. She attends roll
15 call (each shift) thanking Officers for their
16 services. She has also been instrumental yearly
17 in the Fifth Precinct's Beautification Day,
18 assisting with the planting of several types of
19 flowers and maintaining the beds. Ms. Roth
20 donates to National Night Out, which is an annual
21 community-building campaign. She contributes
22 donations to Women Returning to the Work Place,
23 Trunk or Treat, and the Halloween Float.
24 Ms. Roth also contributes to the less fortunate
25 children by donating monies to purchase Halloween

1 Costumes.

2 Now, therefore, let it be

3 RESOLVED that the Detroit Board of Police Commissioners
4 speaking for the citizens of the city of Detroit
5 and the Detroit Police Department, acknowledges
6 the dedicated, hardworking, caring spirit of
7 Ms. Roth. Her commitment and years of dedication
8 to supporting the community of the Fifth Precinct
9 and the citizens throughout the city Detroit
10 merits our highest regards.

11 And it's signed by all of the Board of Police
12 Commissioners and adopted on August 9, 2018.

13 MS. ROTH: Thank you.

14 (APPLAUSE)

15 (PHOTO SHOOT)

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: I believe you have another
17 one before you make your remarks.

18 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: Oh, before.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: She's --

20 POLICE OFFICER: So your honor continues. So we
21 have that your activity in the community definitely goes
22 recognized. I have here a Spirit of Detroit Award signed
23 by all the City Council members. And I'll read the reward.

24 The Spirit of Detroit Award is presented herewith
25 as an expression of gratitude and esteem of the

1 citizens of Detroit. Ms. Judith Ann Justine Roth
2 in recognition of exceptional achievement,
3 outstanding leadership, and dedication to
4 improving the quality of life.

5 Signed by the council for the city of Detroit.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: We're going to have our
7 Councilman Spivey come up, please.

8 POLICE OFFICER: So the councilman will have some
9 extra --

10 COUNCILMAN SPIVEY: We have these in our office.
11 We don't take them lightly. At least I don't. We pass
12 them out. And we thank you. Because I'll tell you
13 President Brenda Jones says. The Spirit of Detroit is
14 outside. The statute is outside of city hall. When we
15 give these awards away, you carry the Spirit of Detroit
16 with you. We thank you, and God bless you. And keep doing
17 the great and outstanding work in our city, all right.
18 Thank you very much.

19 (APPLAUSE)

20 (PHOTO SHOOT)

21 MS. ROTH: I want to thank everyone. I am truly
22 honored. This was such a surprise. I mean, I just do what
23 comes naturally to me. I love helping people. So thank
24 you very much.

25 (APPLAUSE)

1 COMMISSIONER HOLLEY: That was nice.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: We're going to now move on to
3 giving Assistant Chief White an opportunity to take his
4 seat.

5 Ms. Roth, did I hear that you served on the draft
6 board?

7 CITIZEN: Yes.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Are you responsible for
9 drafting me?

10 CITIZEN: I don't know. Might have been.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: I can get rid of all of that
12 stress and anger by talking to you after the meeting.

13 Assistant Chief White.

14 AC WHITE: Good evening again Board.

15 MR. HICKS: Excuse me, Mr. Chair. Mr. Chair, can
16 the --

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Oh, I'm sorry. Would you
18 pause for one second.

19 The Chair would entertain a motion to receive all
20 three resolutions at this particular time.

21 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: Motion to adopt.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly moved and
23 seconded.

24 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Second.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Discussion? The motion --

1 Those in favor aye.

2 THE BOARD: Aye.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those not in favor? Not
4 going to hear you anyway. Motion passed. Thank you.

5 Now Assistant Chief White.

6 AC WHITE: Yes, good evening again Board. I will
7 start out with the CompStat Report.

8 We continue to see a reduction in crime. We
9 certainly have a lot of work to do. We're not going to
10 rest on the success we've had. We've had a 13% reduction
11 in homicide, for a total of 21 homicides less homicides --
12 21 less homicides year-to-date. We've had an up take in
13 sexual assault, a reduction in robbery to the sum of 12%.
14 Uptick -- slight uptick in carjacking at 5%. Aggravated
15 assaults down 7%. And nonfatal shootings down 17%. We
16 have a overall part one offense reduction of 10%.

17 And as I indicated, we have a lot of work to do,
18 but these results are indicative of the hard work of the
19 members of the Detroit Police Department continue do on a
20 day in and day out basis, and we're very happy with their
21 work.

22 Now the Board has asked that we provide an update
23 on the injuries to the officers. This is a quite robust
24 report, so I will try to speedily go through it. But I do
25 ask that the Board and every member of this audience to

1 keep these officers in your prayers as they're out there
2 protecting all of us on a day in and day out basis.

3 Officer Waldis Johnson continues to recover at a
4 long-term care facility. Remember he suffered from a
5 gunshot wound. Officer Anthony Brown from being hit by a
6 vehicle is recuperating at home. Officer James Kisselburg
7 continues to recuperate at home from a gunshot wound.
8 Officer Eric Smith, another gunshot wound, recuperating at
9 home. Sergeant Eric Bussi, a broken ankle. Recuperating.
10 Officer Justin Marroquin, trauma to his head. Recuperating
11 at home. Christopher Bush, very serious injury to his
12 right hand. Recuperating at home. Christopher Thurston, a
13 motorcycle accident. Admitted to a rehab facility.

14 Officer, most recently, Fadi Shukur was struck by
15 a motor vehicle. This is a very very serious and critical
16 accident. The perpetrator in this instance has been
17 arrested, and the officer is fighting for his life. But
18 this is a very very serious and critical injury to this
19 officer. I would ask that we send extra prayers for him
20 and his family. He's a one year member of our police
21 department, recently married. And it's just a very tragic
22 and sad situation.

23 It's been a particularly tragic week for the
24 police department. Tragic couple of weeks. Retired
25 Sergeant Leroy Stafford died unexpectedly. His funeral was

1 about ten days ago. And as the Board is aware, Officer
2 James Hearn and his fiancée Ashley Dalton, we had their
3 funeral last Saturday. It was a double funeral, and very
4 sad. And I ask that the Board keep his family in prayers
5 as well.

6 Moving to a -- well first are there any questions
7 that the Board has on those?

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners? We can wait
9 until you finish your report perhaps.

10 AC WHITE: Moving to a lighter subject, the Board
11 is aware that we graduated 30 police officers last weekend,
12 last Friday. They have been deployed to the field. We
13 celebrated National Night Out Tuesday night. All the
14 precincts participated and did a phenomenal job. Number
15 Five, I had a very interesting format, but it was very well
16 done. We just got to make sure it's National Night Out.
17 But it went very well, and we were happy to see it.

18 And the recruits graduated, National Night Out,
19 and that is the -- actually it isn't. There's one other --
20 we are graduating -- after -- we are graduating our summer
21 interns Monday, August 13, 2018 from 2:00 to 4:00 p.m. at
22 the Headquarters. And it will be in the Michigan Room. We
23 invite everybody that wants to attend to attend. It should
24 be a good event. These have been the interns that have
25 helped the department over the past summer or this summer

1 in various capacities. And we're looking to hire a couple
2 of them in the police department. And that concludes my
3 report.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners, questions or
5 concerns?

6 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Through the Chair.

7 Chief, first of all, National Night Out, we need
8 to give the department a hand because they were just --

9 (APPLAUSE)

10 COMMISSIONER BROWN: All had a good time over
11 there. Unfortunately it was at the Eighth Precinct, not on
12 the eastside. I was aware of all the events going on in
13 various locations. I was very impressed. But I could see
14 where we could do more. I was glad I didn't have to cook
15 or man that grill. And I just -- I saw our attorney
16 Jermain was there with his daughter. There were a lot of
17 people out. If you didn't take part in it, hey, you missed
18 a night party.

19 Secondly, Chief, I mentioned to you about the two
20 officers that was exposed to some hazardous chemicals, if
21 we could get an update on them. And then this goes to my
22 next point. That when I spoke to you earlier we need to
23 probably step it up about making sure that we get our
24 officers trained and certified as medical first responders.
25 That is a state certification. All firefighters have it.

1 It's the first step to becoming EMTs, because just as
2 firefighter are there on the frontline being first,
3 sometimes you guys are there before we get there. And this
4 is one those incident where probably if they had more
5 training and was able to recognize those placards and
6 things on those tankards it may have been -- it probably
7 could have been avoided. So I think this is a very
8 important opportunity for us to seize.

9 And just to let you know that the Detroit Fire
10 Department is a regional training facility. They do have
11 regional training status, and they can provide that
12 training for the department. But I think it's something
13 that we really need to look at. But other than that, hey,
14 great job with everything. I wish all the officers well.
15 But I think things are moving in the right direction. And
16 just I'm going to keep everybody in their prayers.

17 I know everyone's reaching out to me about the
18 situations with the officers that's doing good in the
19 department. So you did a great job everybody. Keep it up.
20 Keep up the good work, and just try to just remain safe.

21 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I have a couple of things.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

23 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay, first off I'd like to
24 say that National Night Out was outstanding. 'Cause like
25 in District Seven we're fortunate to have three police

1 stations: The 2nd, the 6th, and the 10th. And all three
2 did outstanding jobs.

3 (APPLAUSE)

4 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Also we was expecting to
5 hear some more detailed information as it relates to Arnold
6 Williams. You know the former deputy assistant chief or
7 whatever. His assignment's been changed. And also some
8 more information on the 50 year old cold case with James
9 Matthis.

10 AC WHITE: May I respond?

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

12 AC WHITE: Through the Chair, there was a number
13 of questions asked. And quite frankly, I there's three
14 different ones. So I'm more than willing to address each
15 question.

16 If we can start with the first one, Arnold
17 Williams. As the Board has been made aware via the Chief's
18 Office, Assistant Chief Williams has made a decision to
19 step down from his division. It is a personnel matter. He
20 made that request with the chief of police. The chief
21 concurred and accepted that request. And he is currently
22 on vacation. Upon his return, I would imagine he would be
23 reassigned after he meets with the chief about that
24 assignment. No decisions have been made yet.

25 Beyond that, respectfully I request that the

1 Board establish a single purpose meeting with the chief of
2 police to address this matter further as it is a personnel
3 issue.

4 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay, and the 15 year old
5 cold case.

6 Chief of police: The 15 year old cold case, if
7 you're speaking of the one in the paper --

8 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.

9 Chief of police: -- regarding James Matthews.
10 The 15 year old cold case frankly was very very good work
11 by a Detective Weinert, Tracy Weinert, of the Cold Case
12 Squad. Some information was received from New York about
13 an arrest. She followed that arrest. She followed a DNA
14 hit; took the DNA hit; looked at one of our cases and
15 linked it to an assault, an older criminal sexual conduct
16 assault; made some inquiries as to the subject's
17 whereabouts; was able to identify some witnesses, get some
18 recorded statements. And currently he is awaiting
19 extradition from New York back to Michigan, and he will be
20 facing two charges.

21 He's also being looked at for a number of
22 homicides that have occurred. I don't have a lot of
23 information on that, but I will tell you that he is being
24 looked at for a number of homicides involving females in
25 their 30s where they were assaulted in vacant homes.

1 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay, if you will keep us
2 updated.

3 Chief of police: We will. And there was one
4 other question I believe. Or was that it?

5 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I was commenting about how
6 outstanding the 2nd, the 6th and the 10th Precincts were.
7 But, you know.

8 Chief of police: I agree.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner Brooks.

10 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Yes. I don't have a
11 question, but I have an announcement to make.

12 At graduation I was the proud grandmother of a
13 recruit. I did not recruit him. He's an ex-marine, and he
14 heard me talk about it so much when he'd come to visit that
15 he moved to Detroit to live with his father, and he wanted
16 to become a police officer. And I am so proud of him that
17 I could just burst on the stage. And he said to me
18 afterwards at lunch, the other graduates said, who was that
19 woman that keeps coming up to him and getting a picture
20 with you. He said that was my grandmother. So I just want
21 to make that announcement. Xavier Miles Brooks, my
22 grandson, graduated last Friday, and I am just proud. So
23 if we can get him here we can get others. So I'm going to
24 keep on talking about it. Thank you.

25 (APPLAUSE)

1 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: He also got an award. And
2 I can't tell you the name of it, because it had something
3 to do with shootings.

4 UNKNOWN SPEAKER: Firearms.

5 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Oh, he got a firearms
6 award, and I think that came from being an ex-marine. But
7 you cannot beat this training. You cannot. I heard so
8 many good things about the training the went through. And
9 they were a team. They all worked together. So thank you.

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Commissioner
11 Brooks.

12 Any other comments? Yes, sir.

13 Chief of police: There were two more things.
14 Thought there were. You wanted an update on --
15 unintelligible --

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

17 Chief of police: The -- unintelligible --
18 project continues to move forward. We were just over there
19 yesterday addressing some issues that the Board brought to
20 our attention with regards to the lower level. We're just
21 about complete with that construction. There was some
22 security concerns that we addressed as well, so I'll be
23 presenting a final packet to the Board in the next couple
24 of days.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

1 Chief of police: That's it.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Is that it?

3 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: I just want to say thank you
5 for reporting out chief of police. I just want to indicate
6 that the matter concerning the former Assistant Chief
7 Williams is a personal matter with the chief. And in that
8 vain, we have no other desire to have discussion on it.
9 The discussion we might have is replacement, as you well
10 know. So other than that, the issue has been handled
11 properly. And the chief informed us of that. So, you
12 know, we appreciate that type of interaction.

13 Chief of police: Yes, sir.

14 COMMISSIONER BELL: We're going to move on to our
15 HR report from Interim Director Bridget Lamar.

16 DIRECTOR LAMAR: I'm a little vertically
17 challenged here. Good evening to this Honorable Board.

18 THE BOARD: Good evening.

19 POLICE OFFICER: Board staff members, chief of
20 police in the Chief's absence, DPD executive and command
21 staff, and last but not least the greater citizens of this
22 city.

23 I am Bridget Lamar, interim personnel director,
24 and I will be providing the monthly report for July.

25 For our employment -- and just to start out, July

1 1st starts off the beginning of our fiscal year. We have
2 2,480 sworn positions filled out of the 2,638. Out of the
3 -- there are 595 positions filled out of the 686 civilian
4 physicians, bringing the total of the department filled
5 FTEs to 3,075 which is a 92% fill rate.

6 Our current vacant positions is 158 sworn and 91
7 civilian. But that's not to fret, because it's the
8 beginning of fiscal year, and additional positions were
9 added to the Budget in both civilian and sworn positions.
10 We have 109 police officers positions. And again, as
11 Commissioner Brooks says, we're recruiting everyday.
12 Everyone is a recruiter. So if you have young men and
13 women that want to join the ranks of the police department,
14 send them our way to the Recruiting Division. We will
15 gladly take them.

16 You can call my office at (313) 237-3100, and we
17 will get you in touch with the right people for either
18 sworn or civilian recruiting. And for our civilian
19 positions, both sworn and civilian, you can go to the
20 city's website at DetroitMI.gov. The applications are on
21 there as well as the requirements. And for the sworn
22 requirements it tells you exactly what you need to do to
23 become a police officer in terms of preparing for the
24 written test as well as the physical agility test. It
25 tells you exactly what you need to do in terms of the high

1 jump, running, number of pushups and what you have to do to
2 prepare so that you will be prepared when -- if one is
3 interested in joining the ranks.

4 For the sworn recruiting, I'm going from July 1st
5 through July 31st, because again it's the beginning of the
6 fiscal year. We had a total of 401 applicants.
7 Seventy-nine are awaiting MCOLES testing. We have another
8 178 in process. Which means they're anywhere in the
9 process from application, to medical, to written test, to
10 physical agility test. We had 135 with a lack of interest,
11 meaning that they did not either complete their application
12 or once our recruiters make contact with them --

13 And with our recruiters there are three points of
14 contact. So they make the initial contact. There is a
15 follow-up with a phone call, follow-up with a letter so
16 that we can still try to garner their interest. But we had
17 135 that had a lack of interest. A hundred twenty-seven
18 were temporarily disqualified, which means that they had
19 something in their application that temporarily
20 disqualified them. And if they fix whatever it is then
21 their application will be reviewed at a later date.

22 We had 194 that were permanently disqualified,
23 which means that they had something in their application or
24 background that disqualified them from becoming a police
25 officer. We don't have any ready to hire. However, we did

1 -- we had a busy week the end of August. We hired on July
2 the 30th 40 new officers. We had a promotional ceremony
3 also that week. And then on July -- August the 3rd --
4 excuse me -- we graduated 30 members.

5 So don't fret, we have another class that's
6 coming up. Our goal is to have another 40 by the end of
7 August. So again, everyone is recruiters. We need
8 everyone's help to recruit the officers. So if you have
9 one that someone is interested, by all means get in touch
10 with us.

11 And I also wanted to mention for both sworn and
12 civilian positions, if you have Detroit residents that are
13 interested -- we have something that we call domicile
14 credits in which Detroit residents if they show proper
15 residency in the city of Detroit, and it tells you on the
16 website what you need to do to get 15 extra points. So we
17 want our Detroiters, and we encourage our Detroiters to
18 apply for the City of Detroit positions.

19 Four the MCOLES testing, we had 131 scheduled for
20 the written test. Eighty-nine appeared. Sixty-eight
21 passed the test. For the physical agility, ninety-four
22 were scheduled. Sixty-two appeared. Forty passed. Again
23 we encourage those that are going for the physical agility
24 to look at the website so that they can properly prepare.
25 It tells you exactly what you need to prepare for before

1 going for the testing.

2 Our total new hires for July; we had 55 hires.
3 Forty sworn members. Fifteen civilian.

4 For the residency report for the City of Detroit.
5 For the total sworn there were 585 are Detroiters; 1,838 are
6 non-Detroiters. For civilians, 365 are Detroiters; 230 are
7 non-Detroiters. Our civilian new hires. Seven, almost
8 half of them, were Detroiters. For the sworn new hires,
9 eight were Detroiters.

10 And again, as first Assistant Chief -- excuse
11 me -- Assistant Chief White said, our internship program
12 concludes on a Monday, August 13th. There are 15 interns
13 in the programs from various universities. We encourage
14 all to come and celebrate with us as we celebrate them
15 completing the internship program at Headquarters from 2:00
16 to 4:00 in the Michigan Room.

17 Attrition for the month of July: Twenty-seven
18 sworn members separated from the department, and five
19 civilian, bringing our attrition to thirty-two. Also want
20 to note, of the sworn about half of those were retirements.

21 The leaves of absence and restricted duty we have
22 137 sworn members that are in a restricted duty capacity.
23 Ten are on a continuous FMLA. Sixty-seven intermittent.
24 Sixty-seven on medical leave. Four military leave. And
25 again I echo Assistant Chief White, if we keep all of the

1 members who were injured, especially the family of Shukur
2 and Officer Shukur in our prayers as he fights with his
3 life.

4 For civilian members we have 68 that are -- that
5 have intermittent FMLA, and ten on medical leave of
6 absences. That concludes my report, and I will entertain
7 any questions.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners, any questions
9 or comments?

10 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Of course. Always.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Go ahead.

12 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Question young lady.

13 Of the individual civilians and sworn positions
14 that failed, how many of them were city of Detroit
15 residents? And is there a higher number of city of Detroit
16 residents that are failing or disqualified.

17 MS. LAMAR: Well we knew you were going to ask
18 that question.

19 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Of course. I'm always
20 concerned about Detroit residents.

21 MS. LAMAR: In our recruiting subcommittee -- if
22 you don't mind, I will talk specifically about the sworn.
23 For our sworn who did not make it through testing, you have
24 the majority -- if you look, there were 24 that were from
25 Detroit that made it to the testing. But there were others

1 from other cities. One here, one there. So when you look
2 at it all together, the majority of Detroiters did make it
3 through the testing. But when you add up the aggregate
4 numbers, then it's more from outside the city of Detroit.
5 For instance, you may have had within person from Albion,
6 one person from Allen Park, one person from Wyandotte. So
7 when you look at that way, yes, it was more nonresidents
8 that made it through than Detroiters. But if you look at
9 it as a whole there were 24 from the city, but the other
10 ones were smaller numbers throughout.

11 And if we look at -- and we can give this to you.
12 We have the actual breakdown of why people failed and the
13 numbers of it. In the different areas for like arrest
14 history we have the numbers there. And then going on to
15 LEIN, we have the numbers there and how many were
16 Detroiters and non-Detroiters. We have that all broken
17 down. So I will respectfully submit this to the Board for
18 your perusal.

19 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Also due -- for promotions
20 as the officers move up, do Detroit residents, the officers
21 that live in Detroit, get any additional points?

22 MS. LAMAR: No, sir.

23 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: They should. That's it.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner Dewaelsche.

25 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: Thank you.

1 Thank you so much for providing all of these
2 details.

3 MS. LAMAR: Yes, ma'am.

4 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: I know we've had some
5 meetings with you and have actually asked a lot of the
6 questions that are asked either by the board members at our
7 meetings when you give your report. And you provided more
8 detail today so that it could be understood.

9 I would just say that the question about how many
10 are passing the exam or any question about Detroit
11 residents has to be placed into perspective, as you're
12 trying do right now.

13 CITIZEN: Yes, ma'am.

14 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: And that is when we
15 look at -- if we were to ask the question which city has
16 the highest number of Detroit residents that are passing
17 the exam then Detroit would be that city. Because as you
18 showed us in one of our meetings, you might have 20 cities,
19 and each one of them has one applicant that -- you know,
20 from each city. So when you put it into perspective it
21 does give you a better picture. But I do have a question.

22 MS. LAMAR: Yes, ma'am.

23 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: And thank you again for
24 all of that detail. I thought it was very important
25 information to bring out the recruitment points that are

1 provided as a result of people that are from Detroit; the
2 15 points.

3 How many points -- I just have a question. How
4 many points are there for the total application process?
5 What does that 15 points represent?

6 MS. LAMAR: Those are 15 points over and above.
7 Of course we use 100.

8 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: A hundred? So it would
9 be 150 --

10 MS. LAMAR: And there are 15 points over above
11 for being a Detroit resident, as well as if one is a
12 veteran. We do veterans preference also.

13 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Okay, great. So that
14 was one question. And then the other question I have --
15 well I don't know if you can respond to this question. It
16 appears that more people are passing the written exam than
17 previously. Because I just did the calculation and it
18 looks like almost 80% --

19 MS. LAMAR: Yes, ma'am.

20 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: -- are passing. Is
21 that a trend? That's a good thing.

22 MS. LAMAR: We're hoping that that is going to be
23 a good thing and a trend. And again we thank you, because
24 one of the things that recruitment now has done is put
25 together some resources if people don't pass the test to

1 give them resources where they can go in to -- that can
2 assist them in their reading level or whatever it is that
3 they can -- so they can pass. So we hope that this is an
4 upward trend.

5 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: Great. Thank you very
6 much.

7 MS. LAMAR: You're quite welcome.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner Brown.

9 COMMISSIONER BROWN: I want to thank you,
10 Ms. Lamar.

11 MS. LAMAR: Thank you.

12 COMMISSIONER BROWN: It was an excellent report.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Ms. Lamar, I have --

14 MS. LAMAR: Yes, sir?

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: -- just one concern. Looking
16 at the numbers for the medical restricted duty. We had an
17 issue in the past. How do we address long-term restricted
18 duty since we are semi military? I know military you can
19 only stay on restricted duty for a period of time then you
20 are retiring. And I know that issue came up during I want
21 to say Mayor Archer's administration. We had a huge number
22 of people that was on restricted duty. And they did
23 re-evaluation. You know, either you come back restricted
24 duty or you're retiring, because we cannot continue to
25 carry you on restricted duty.

1 Could you address that somewhat? If not, in the
2 future? Could you approach it at all? Is there a time
3 period?

4 MS. LAMAR: Yes, sir. I can explain restricted
5 duty.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

7 MS. LAMAR: Restricted duty, it comes under the
8 auspices of police work, but which is also under the Human
9 Resources Bureau.

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

11 MS. LAMAR: For restricted duty, in the
12 collective bargaining agreement between the City of Detroit
13 and Detroit Police Officers Association, as well as our
14 other union partners, there are articles which stipulate
15 that the Chief can determine the number of restricted duty
16 positions. If one has a disability, be it either duty or
17 nonduty in which there are permanently disabled then we put
18 an application in for either a duty or a nonduty disability
19 retirement on their behalf.

20 The members are also required to come into police
21 medical once every 30 days to provide an update on their
22 condition from their physician. We give them the 24
23 functions of law enforce -- 24 Essential Functions of a Law
24 Enforcement Officer whereby their position looks at those
25 24 functions and makes a determination if they can or

1 cannot perform those functions.

2 So is there a specific time? Not exactly. But
3 we're managing that. And a lot of the restricted duty
4 we've had a lot of injuries. And a lot of them are
5 short-term. But for the long-term, we are managing and
6 putting members in for either a nonduty or a duty
7 disability retirement once their physician says that
8 they're -- that their disability is permanent and they will
9 no longer be able to perform the duties of a police
10 officer.

11 We also engage them in an interactive process
12 under the law under the Americans With Disability Act to
13 see if there is any other position within the city of
14 Detroit in which they can perform those duties.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Could you share at some point
16 in time a breakdown, a profile of what we're dealing with
17 so the Board will have an idea of how we're managing that?
18 Would you share that in the future?

19 MS. LAMAR: I sure can. I can provide that next
20 month.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: And thank you for the
22 excellent report. We appreciate your involvement with --

23 MS. LAMAR: You're quite welcome.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: -- recruitment, And it's
25 right on point in terms of where we are. We just need

1 people to recruit good people. And we are trying our best.
2 And that's why we wanted to have you report out to this
3 body here where they can actually hear it and not only see
4 it in terms of where we are, in terms of the issues of
5 Detroiters, non-Detroiters and all that, the perspective of
6 African -- the whole gamut.

7 MS. LAMAR: Yes, sir.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: And we try to share that with
9 the community at this forum. Thank you.

10 MS. LAMAR: Yes, sir. Thank you.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Now the next item will be
12 hearing from the Fifth Precinct, speaking of recruitment.
13 One of our top recruiters at one time, and she's doing an
14 excellent job at the Fifth Precinct. We're happy to have
15 her. Captain Gardner.

16 CAPTAIN GARDNER: Thank you, and good evening.
17 But before I start, I will have to say that I agree with
18 Bishop Reed. I was out running this morning, and I did see
19 mom out there running.

20 It's a pleasure to be in front of you all
21 presenting for the Fifth Precinct and the Fifth Precinct
22 community. Commander Ewing unfortunately could not be here
23 on tonight, so I'll be doing the full presentation.

24 So what we were asked to do is just give an
25 overview of the crime trends that are currently going in

1 the Fifth Precinct. So when we look at the crime trend of
2 murder, we are up 11%. Our CSC 1 and 3, we're currently up
3 23%. Our robberies, however, are down 9%. Aggravated
4 assaults is down 4%, leaving our violent offenses to be
5 down 3% year-to-date.

6 When we look at our property offenses, our
7 burglaries are up 8%. Our larcenies are down 14%. Motor
8 vehicle theft is down 25%, leaving a total for Part 1
9 offenses for the year down 8%.

10 And we also looked at identifying issues in
11 crime. Currently we looked at our nonfatal shootings. And
12 what we did is a three month comparison from last year
13 year-to-date. So when we look at May of last year we were
14 at 22. May of this year we were at 15 for nonfatal
15 shootings. June 30th of last year we were at 25. This
16 year we are 18. And on July of this year we were -- I'm
17 sorry -- of last year was 32. We are currently at 27 for
18 this year. And I believe our closure rate is at a 22%
19 right now for our nonfatal shootings.

20 We also did the same thing for our homicides.
21 When we looked at last year's, we were even for the month
22 of May last year, and this year was six and six. For June
23 we had of last year six. June of this year eight. In July
24 of last year we had seven, and as of this year we have ten.
25 So we did have an increase of 30% when we talk about our

1 homicides.

2 And what we have to do is look at strategies to
3 address these issues. And we do see that homicides has
4 shown an increase. However, we are feeling the trend is
5 trending down and looking to go in a downward direction.

6 So what we're doing is, one, we are a Cease Fire
7 precinct. So we do have a Cease Fire crew that goes out on
8 all of our shootings to see if we can get information a
9 little bit more quickly from victims and offenders or those
10 witnesses that are in the area.

11 We also looked at our current crime and
12 robberies. So when we looked at a 28 day period, we see
13 there was a steady increase on two for each week. However,
14 I will report on today we were able to get an arrest of
15 three individuals that we hope are going to be able to tie
16 to some of the robberies that have been preying on our east
17 end of the precinct which would have been in our Five, Six
18 area. So we have seen a decrease, however, with our
19 robberies of 65% in the last 28 days. And again, a
20 decrease of 9% year-to-date.

21 Our precinct strategist has been working with our
22 Special Operations. To date they have been able to pull
23 off 71 guns from the streets. We are utilizing target
24 enforcement. We have a Restore Order operation that we run
25 on a weekly basis. And we're also in partnership with the

1 MDOC who conducts bed checks. And of that, MDOC was able
2 to do 349 bed checks. Of that they were able to make
3 contact with probationers of 242. And of that we found
4 them to have some violations, and we had 60 arrest due to
5 violations. We also have been partnering really well with
6 our Homicide, Gang Entail, and our major violators in Vice
7 Units and Progressive Enforcement.

8 We also deal with gun stat. And in gun stat, we
9 send a detective to arraignments to hopefully ensure that
10 we get appropriate bonds for those who are out here
11 committing gun offenses. And that does seem to be working.
12 We're seeing a huge increase in the amount of bond for an
13 individual who has committed a crime that involves a
14 weapon.

15 Some of our community programs that we have is we
16 have an embedded social worker at our precinct. We also
17 have a victim's advocate who assist citizens with PPOs,
18 works with officers, and a Chaplain Corps to address
19 domestic violence and education on domestic violence. And
20 we've adopted the Eight Precinct's program, which is the
21 Aftercare Program, in which the chaplain and one of our
22 officers will go out to an individual that's been a victim
23 of a domestic violence situation, and we'll provide them
24 with information or resources that hopefully will get them
25 to go to prosecution with those who have, you know,

1 victimized them.

2 Some other things that we are currently doing in
3 the precinct and those who have -- really a lot of our
4 active members in the community have taken part in what we
5 call the Police Community Summit in which we bring in
6 citizens as well as officers and have some really tough
7 dialogue on where some of the breakdown may be in
8 communication, or issues that people may have had with
9 police, as well as officers with citizens.

10 And what we'll do is a scenario-based
11 presentations in front of them. We also look at those who
12 might file citizen complaints within our precinct. We will
13 call them up and ask them if they'd be willing to come to
14 the Summit, voice those issues and see if we can correct
15 that harm that they might have felt due to police services.

16 And we just recently added a new program to the
17 precinct called Girls Time. And this is an event where we
18 bring in young ladies from the ages of 14 to 20, and we
19 allow them the forum. We do not -- how do I say? We allow
20 them the floor. We're not there to chastise them, tell
21 them what they need. We open the floor for them to tell us
22 what they need. Because a lot of times what we might feel
23 someone needs is not really what they want. So we want to
24 make sure that we are providing resources to them, to have
25 that open dialogue with us that will allow them to know

1 that there are resources out there, there are people that
2 care about where they are at their current state and that
3 we can help them in that current state. And on our first
4 one, we were able to get 22 young ladies to come out. And
5 it's a one hour power pack of information and open dialogue
6 with them.

7 We are looking to host our second one on August
8 21st. And we are hoping -- and I'm pretty sure we're going
9 to have better turn out or a higher turn out, because after
10 they left they said, Captain, can I bring a friend the next
11 time? So that was phenomenal for us to hear those types of
12 words coming from them.

13 As a matter of fact, in our last one we had one
14 that we considered to be a heckler. She didn't really want
15 to participate. But I seen her on yesterday, and she came
16 up and gave me a big hug. So I said, okay, we're reaching
17 them. And that's the whole goal, is to make sure we're out
18 here and we're reaching every level of our youth. And
19 we're letting them know that we are in partnership with
20 them, and we want to help them through their trying times
21 as well.

22 Our MPOs have conducted several programs as well.
23 The Squatter Education, the Walk and Talk With a District
24 Four Manager Letty Azar. And I'm happy to agree with you,
25 chairperson, that Letty -- if you don't know Letty

1 something's wrong. Because she is out there. She's
2 diligent. And she's definitely out there getting the
3 information to the citizens, any type of issues that
4 they're having. So we definitely enjoy having her within
5 our Precinct.

6 We have the Back to School Backpack Giveaway, the
7 Family Fun Day with Councilman Spivey who definitely does a
8 lot of volunteering, a lot of lot of donating to the Fifth
9 Precinct and our division. So we appreciate him for that
10 as well. We're going to be hosting Ice Cream With a Cop on
11 Monday with the Salvation Army. And then we have officers
12 -- the NPOs do the Police Encounters and Stranger Danger.

13 So to finish off with some upcoming events that
14 we have, we're going to -- like I stated earlier, the Ice
15 Cream Social With a Cop. On August 20th we have Shop With
16 a Cop. On August 25th we had the Family Finish Day with
17 Councilman Spivey. On September 5th is the Detroit --
18 unintelligible -- the youth training sessions. And then
19 October 31st we have the Halloween Trunk and Treat. So we
20 do have a lot of initiatives going on in the precinct. And
21 we definitely try to be out there and be vigilant in
22 meeting the needs of the citizens that fall within our
23 particular precinct.

24 I'll open the floor for any questions.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners, any questions

1 or concerns for the captain?

2 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Of course.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

4 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Did you -- I don't remember
5 you saying anything about the sexual assaults.

6 CAPTAIN GARDNER: Yes. The sexual assaults have
7 shown a slight trend upward. And the ones that I have
8 looked at, most of them had been family sexual assaults.
9 We did have one where we identified an individual who had
10 committed three, and they were able to get him into
11 custody.

12 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Also the Shop With a Cop, is
13 there a certain budget that you have for each individual?
14 I mean, young people you're trying to --

15 POLICE OFFICER: Generally we base it off of the
16 amount of money that we get donated in so that we have a
17 target on where we're going to be able to shop and how many
18 we're going to be able to provide with that experience.

19 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you.

20 CAPTAIN GARDNER: You're welcome.

21 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Through the chair.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

23 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Thank you for that
24 information. Excellent job. I just have one question with
25 the young ladies. I'm impressed with the program in what

1 you're doing and what you're telling us. Is there an
2 opportunity that this is something we can roll out
3 throughout the city, that we can set a model for the rest
4 of the precincts to follow?

5 CAPTAIN GARDNER: Yes. The chief is actually
6 working with that program now.

7 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Okay.

8 CAPTAIN GARDNER: And we will be rolling out --
9 we'll be city-wide. And hopefully we'll have it as a
10 single based program.

11 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Okay, thank you.

12 POLICE OFFICER: You're welcome.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other questions or
14 concerns?

15 Chief of police: Yes, sir. Through the Chair, I
16 just want to bring some clarity to one aspect of the
17 report.

18 First of all, very good report.

19 POLICE OFFICER: Thank you.

20 Chief of police: And the Fifth Precinct
21 continues to do a phenomenal job. I would like you to
22 unpack though, if you would the homicides. You indicate an
23 uptake or continual uptake. And I want to talk a little
24 bit about the robberies for the community to understand.
25 Particularly the homicides, can you put real numbers to

1 those statistics and tell us exactly what we're talking
2 about in terms of your increases?

3 CAPTAIN GARDNER: So when you talk about real
4 numbers are you wanting the breakdown of --

5 Chief of police: So from May 31, 2018 we're
6 even. You have that data?

7 CAPTAIN GARDNER: No, I do not.

8 Chief of police: Okay. I'll do it for you then.
9 Your 25% increase represents eight homicides this year as
10 opposed to six last year. And I just wanted to unpack that
11 for the community.

12 CAPTAIN GARDNER: Okay, I did state that.

13 Chief of police: Okay, fair enough. And then
14 with regards to your robberies, you actually show a 65%
15 decrease.

16 POLICE OFFICER: For that 28 days.

17 Chief of police: For the 28 days.

18 CAPTAIN GARDNER: Uh-hmm.

19 Chief of police: All right, thank you.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for that clarity.

21 Any other questions for the Fifth Precinct?

22 And Fifth Precinct, as you well know, I've been
23 in the Fifth Precinct since 1974, and I'm just overly --
24 even prior to that. I take that back. I just want to say
25 that I work closely with the Fifth Precinct because I live

1 in the Fifth Precinct. I witness their involvement.
2 They're on the cutting edge as police community relations;
3 not just with the young people, with the seniors. I just
4 mean from all walks of life. That's the type of
5 involvement -- I think that's also true throughout the
6 city, Assistant Chief White. You hear that everywhere we
7 go, they're outstanding.

8 And I just want to close by -- with all means you
9 need to introduce the MPOs and any other staff on the Fifth
10 Precinct. Would they please stand. And we want to
11 acknowledge them by name.

12 CAPTAIN GARDNER: Yes. I have my administrative
13 sergeant, Sergeant Paul, and my lieutenant from PDU, Lena
14 Purifoy (Phonetic). And then I have my new addition the
15 MPOs, Maxey. And let's see, do I have anybody else here?
16 Oh, there they are over here. Let me turn to this side.
17 So then I have MPO Curtis, and MPO Gains, and MPO Knight,
18 Herman Knight -- King. Herman King Knight. He's a -- the
19 reason why I say that is because the ladies just lock to
20 Herman.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: I know.

22 CAPTAIN GARDNER: Did I miss anybody? Okay.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay, thank you.

24 (APPLAUSE)

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: I want to recognize the Ninth

1 Precinct also since they -- we sort of overlap a little
2 bit. Is Captain Thornton still here? Would you
3 acknowledge -- he's the captain of the Ninth Precinct. And
4 Commander Decker and MPOs just north of us in terms of the
5 freeway. But it's somewhat interacting with the Ninth
6 Precinct. I just want to recognize you. Thank you for
7 your involvement.

8 (APPLAUSE)

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: I want to close out on our
10 community leader Letty Azar from the mayor's office. And
11 Councilman Spivey is one of those people who engage the
12 Fifth Precinct. Not just the staff, but he's involved with
13 the Float Program on Angels Night. He actual owns the
14 float. He sponsored that. And if you want to come again
15 -- oh, we're talking about Officer Gaines, the real Officer
16 Gaines and her team. I just want to say that they are
17 there. And if you want to come again to the Chandler Park
18 area you need to post that date on Family Fun Day. We'll
19 give you.

20 UNKNOWN SPEAKER: The 25th.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: The 25th that's coming up at
22 Chandler Park. So that's another opportunity to hang out
23 at Chandler Park in the Fifth Precinct. You'll see all
24 these people engaging in that activity. So I thank you
25 Fifth Precinct for an outstanding report, and we're looking

1 forward to more activities.

2 Next item would be Mr. Hicks -- I'm sorry, let's
3 try that again. The standing and ad hoc committee reports.

4 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Yes, I do have a report.
5 Yes. First I'd like to say I to Captain Gardner. I miss
6 you recruiting, but I'm happy that you're here.

7 CAPTAIN GARDNER: Thank you.

8 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Thank you.

9 The Recruiting Ad Hoc Committee met August 1.
10 Attending the meeting were Bridget Lamar, Commissioner Eva
11 Dewaelsche, ad hoc committee; Lieutenant James Coal,
12 Recruiting; Sergeant Nicole Kirwood (Phonetic), the media
13 person for the police chief; our Theresa Blossom; our
14 Community Relations. I always thought you were Media, so
15 I'm just going to say Media. That's much easier for me.
16 Lieutenant Williams from the Chief's Office. Sergeant
17 Phillip Curtis, Recruiting.

18 The purpose of our meeting.

19 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: And Sergeant Gonzalez
20 was there as well. Sergeant Gonzalez.

21 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I didn't mention her? Oh,
22 I'm very sorry. She's part of the ad hoc committee. She
23 is a great worker. She is still recruiting. Starr --
24 Sergeant Starr Gonzalez. And I just overlooked her name
25 here.

1 But the purpose of our meeting was to discuss
2 recruiting goals by means of media. And we -- we discussed
3 a number of things. We discussed the diversity of the
4 recruits. We focused on media. That's what we spent most
5 of our time. We need print media. Fliers to be placed in
6 our communities, advertising: Radio public service
7 announcements, talk shows, television, government access
8 channel, morning talk shows. And we need to target our
9 audience.

10 In our last community meeting, I talked about a
11 young officer Bryant George, the Michiganian of the Year
12 Award, being the face of our recruiting. And at our
13 meeting we also felt there should be a female. He said he
14 would do anything to help us. So I have asked Sergeant
15 Nicole Kirwood, the chief's media, if she would help us to
16 find a female. It was also suggested that we might do
17 families. Sometimes families can do a lot for people. And
18 that was discussed, to have family's officers on fliers
19 also. And this might also keep some of our officers from
20 leaving.

21 I ask a lot about our community when it comes to
22 recruiting. And I called Charlie Beckham, talked with him
23 about the Department of Neighborhood Communities. And he
24 put me in touch with Victoria Kavari (Phonetic). I think
25 I'm pronouncing her name correctly. And I was just so

1 pleased to talk with her. She gave me some very good
2 ideas. And she suggests that we have the DPD recruiting
3 people attend the following chapter mandate meetings:
4 District 6: Unity Baptist Church, which is on Tireman.
5 District 7: Straight Gate International Church, which is
6 on Grand River.

7 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Outstanding church.

8 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: City-wide Meeting,
9 Henderson Auditorium. And I have the dates here.

10 District 3: Conner Avenue United Methodist
11 Church. And she also suggested holding several district
12 recruiting fairs. District managers can help spread the
13 word throughout the district. The Mayor's Office can send
14 out information city-wide.

15 She also suggest we use MPOs as recruiters. They
16 often attend block club meetings where they can present and
17 distribute materials. They regularly interact with young
18 people in the neighborhood. They should be trained and
19 deployed in the neighborhood to look for recruiting
20 opportunities. I have not discussed these options with our
21 meeting because this happened after our meeting. So I will
22 give all of you all a copy of this.

23 Also in September I'm going to present and
24 discuss recruiting at their district meeting. So there are
25 a lot of things that we can do. But I'm hoping that if we

1 follow what she suggest that we can get into our
2 communities.

3 And I'm still letting people that we recruit know
4 that being a police officer is a career. It's not just
5 standing on the corner. It's not just arresting people.
6 You could be a helicopter person. You could be on the
7 boat, on the Riverwalk. There are a lot of things you can
8 do as a police officer.

9 So each -- we're not going to meet once a month.
10 I cut out a lot of this because -- I thank you Bridget for
11 helping me.

12 MS. LAMAR: Yes, ma'am.

13 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: She has been instrumental
14 in helping our committee. And each -- every other month we
15 will have a meeting. And at that meeting we will have a
16 goal. And like I said, this meeting's goal was about
17 media.

18 And also thanks to Bridget, we have -- we will
19 have fliers in D-Dot bus. They will not be there to hand
20 out, they will be on the wall. So thank you very much for
21 that.

22 CAPTAIN GARDNER: Yes, ma'am.

23 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: We really need to get out.
24 Because when I talked to Victoria, someone I think from the
25 Wayne County Police had already been in to talk with them.

1 So we're kind of lagging behind. And that's why I want to
2 get us organized so that he can strategize and recruit all
3 the people that we can recruit. Recruit the best.

4 So I think if we get into our neighborhoods
5 through this we'll be in better shape to recruit. And I'm
6 always asking for ideas from any of you all out there. And
7 I'm always telling you, all of you are recruiters. So
8 thank you.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Commissioner
10 Brooks.

11 I want to say that Commissioner Brooks and her
12 team are charging. It's probably the hardest working, I
13 mean day-to-day, face of the Board as far as recruiting on
14 this board. So I can't say enough that she has taken it
15 on. And she can recruit without even recruiting, because
16 her grandson is proof of it.

17 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Well may I say one last
18 thing? One last thing. I just happened to see one of my
19 church members in the audience. And on Sunday at our last
20 meeting we were given a package of fliers, large fliers and
21 small fliers. So I put some on the table at Sacred Heart
22 Church, but I also gave one to the gentleman back there
23 hoping that he will recruit and I can give him a lock the
24 next time. Thank you. You know who I'm talking to. Yes.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Commissioner

1 Brooks.

2 Any other committee want to report out at this
3 time? You've received your redraft of the committee
4 assignments, and hopefully we have satisfied all of the
5 commissioners. If you still have a concern, you can still
6 speak to me afterwards or any time. Basically this is a
7 redraft of the committee assignments. So we want to work
8 with you in terms of fulfilling those responsibilities.
9 And thank you.

10 The next item would be our board secretary, Mr.
11 Hicks.

12 MR. HICKS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You just
13 simply covered the two items that I was going to mention,
14 so I have nothing to add to tonight's meeting.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Mr. Hicks. And
16 it's not my intent to do that, so I appreciate you.

17 Any old business?

18 Any new business?

19 Announcement: Our next meeting will be on
20 Thursday -- I'm sorry, try it again -- Thursday, August 16
21 at 2018, at 3:00 p.m. Public Safety Headquarters, 1301
22 Third Street.

23 Next community meeting will be on Thursday,
24 September 13, at 6:30 p.m. in the Fourth Precinct.
25 Location forthcoming, but it's going to be in the Fourth

1 Precinct.

2 Now we move to public activities with oral
3 communication from the public. You have two minutes.
4 Ms. Blossom is going to call you up. I just ask that you
5 would respect the process. This is your time. And
6 Ms. Blossom will also give you a heads up on the time
7 frame. So let's move.

8 MS. BLOSSOM: Mr. Chair, I have five cards.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

10 MS. BLOSSOM: If there's anyone else, I need a
11 card. First speaker is Ms. Faith, followed by Michelle
12 George.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Could you call all the
14 speakers? Maybe they can prep themselves to move forward a
15 little bit if they're in the back of the room. If you're
16 comfortable where you are, you know, just make sure you can
17 move the time frame to get you -- thank you.

18 MS. FAITH: Can I just sit here if it's okay?

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: He'll bring it to you. Thank
20 you.

21 MS. FAITH: Welcome to the Board and everyone
22 here, all the guest and visitors and family members and
23 all. Everyone is a valuable human being. I was thinking
24 about -- my name is Ms. Faith, for the record.

25 I was just thinking about families and how I'd --

1 not just now, but I think about it all the time. It's a
2 very big sensitive thing to me. Families are always
3 important. Each one of us carries a lot of different sides
4 of ourself and reflections of ourselves within ourselves.
5 And as parents come together there's double that amount.
6 And they become one when they conceive a child. And that's
7 a mirror -- several mirrors coming out of both parents.

8 And they're very sensitive individuals just
9 sending me along I guess. I don't know. They soak up and
10 reflect mom and dad while they're in the womb. Whatever
11 they hear, whatever they see they bring when they come out
12 as an infant. And I was thinking about that in the wave of
13 crime and the wave of arrests, in the wave of mental health
14 needs, medications and all kinds of things with age
15 progression. Whatever they soak up from mom and dad comes
16 out either violently or calmly or a mixture. Sometimes you
17 can't even understand what it is. Strong willed children,
18 rebellious children, obedient, disobedient. Whatever mom
19 and dad is is what the child is until they go away from
20 here.

21 And so I just wanted to say I encourage the
22 parents on both sides to; the ones with instruction and the
23 ones without instruction. These are not throw away people.
24 I know everyone feels that way because they love their
25 babies, and they're worthwhile success stories. Very

1 viable. I continue to be sensitive that your sensitivity
2 and your image and likeness is in your womb growing. And
3 once the image and likeness of both parents comes out what
4 they'll be -- what they'll be is what they'll be. I just
5 encourage you to just let them soak up and receive the
6 right. Continue to do so.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

8 MS. LAMAR: Thank you for letting me speak.

9 MS. BLOSSOM: Michelle George followed by Scotty
10 Boman, who will be followed by Dana Smith. And the last
11 speaker will be Marilyn Jordan, I believe, if I read that
12 correctly.

13 MS. GEORGE: Good evening to the chairman,
14 Chairman Bell, and to the Board of Commissioners and
15 Assistant Chief White.

16 I wanted to -- well first of all, I attend Unity
17 Baptist Church, so we're welcome to have you. I mentioned
18 to my interim pastor yesterday at Bible study, so we're
19 ready for you to come at Unity.

20 I wanted to hone in on -- and a young lady spoke
21 earlier about the mental health issue; just to hone in on
22 what happened at Detroit Receiving. I know I saw it on CNN
23 as they played the video. But I wanted to -- and not to
24 judge the officer or anything like that -- and I hope the
25 young lady is okay -- but to talk about mental health.

1 A person's condition -- the definition of mental
2 health is a person's condition with regard to their
3 psychological and emotional wellbeing. Mental illness is a
4 wide range of conditions, what affect much thinking and
5 behavior. So I agree with the young lady that spoke
6 earlier that maybe we need to have -- and that model I
7 think is San Francisco where they have a mobile crisis
8 treatment van where the staff goes out on the streets just
9 to provide service to the issues. Because when you see
10 someone that is naked in the city, a lot of people do
11 suffer from psychosis with mental illness. And I hope
12 there are services for the officers. Because in watching
13 the video it was very hard, but also the officers needed
14 assistance with stress relief as well.

15 So as I mentioned to Chief Craig before, I'm
16 going to DC next month. And Congress -- United States
17 Senator Debbie Stabenow, we got to get these psychiatric
18 hospitals back. I want to just hone in on that. And I
19 think that is it that I have to say. Thank you.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

21 MS. BLOSSOM: Scotty Boman, followed by Dana
22 Smith.

23 MR. BOMAN: I may be looking at the very last
24 Board of Police Commissioners in the city of Detroit. As
25 hopefully all of you are aware, this past Tuesday the vote

1 totals appear to indicate that 135 more people voted in
2 favor of revising the City Charter than keeping the current
3 one that brought the elected Board of Commissioners
4 specifically into existence.

5 I'm hoping that we can save The Board of Police
6 Commissioners. I think it's vital to have a board in which
7 the majority of members are not beholden to the city
8 council, the mayor's office, or the police department but
9 are beholden to the residents of the city of Detroit.

10 If anybody is interested in helping -- I wanted
11 to go ahead and petition for a recount yesterday, but I
12 found it's \$25 a precinct, which comes out to 503 if you do
13 the whole city. That's \$12,535. So if anybody that's
14 interested in financing a recount, get ahold of me here or
15 at directco.light is my website with a contact form.

16 Otherwise we need to really vet those commission candidates
17 who are going to be on the charter commission and make sure
18 that they will preserve a Board of Police Commissioners
19 where at least some of the members are elected by office
20 and where they have the type of power that this board has.

21 And so I'm honored to stand before all of you.
22 And I'm hoping that, you know, after the next municipal
23 election that again there will be an elected Board of
24 Police Commissioners for us. Thank you.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

1 MS. BLOSSOM: Dana Smith, followed by Marilyn
2 Jordan.

3 MS. SMITH: Good evening everyone. I did not
4 introduce myself earlier as being the first time attendee,
5 but it is my first board meeting. And I did enjoy the
6 board meeting.

7 I come this evening with actually an employment
8 interest in the area of social worker or clinician. And
9 I've been licensed as a clinician since 2005, and I have a
10 very broad array of social work experience. Starting early
11 in my career I worked with abused and neglected girls.
12 I've done field work. I've done casework. I've worked
13 juvenile justice, foster care, adoptions, severely mentally
14 ill, as well as outpatient. So it's not a lot of areas
15 that I haven't touched in. I have immediate availability.
16 And I just wanted to come this evening and introduce myself
17 so that persons would know my face and my name. And I do
18 have resumes available. Thank you.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

20 MS. JORDAN: Good evening. I'd like to -- it's a
21 good job that the commissioners board is doing, and I too
22 hope that you guys will remain. And I'm willing to do
23 whatever I can to work with you to make sure they stay
24 here.

25 I'm sorry to see that Reverend Holley has left.

1 My name is Marilyn Jordan. I'm the director of the Detroit
2 Police People's Task Force. We're an organization that
3 works to free the wrongly convicted. We also work with
4 families of incarcerated loved once.

5 I'll issue you an inside. I would like possibly
6 some information on where we can obtain a meeting with the
7 police chief. Also we have issues concerning certain
8 officers that are involved in a numerous amount of murderer
9 and criminal justice false If I /KAEUGZ cases that we do
10 have a collective of the same names. One being Officer
11 David Pauch. So we're very concerned about this officer
12 and his involvement in the false If I /KAEUGZ of numerous
13 crimes.

14 So also I won't hold you long with that, but if
15 anyone can give me any information on when we can meet with
16 the police chief or maybe one of you guys. I also
17 contacted Reverend Holley on this issue, but unfortunately
18 we haven't gotten any response. So I would appreciate if
19 we can get any information of when we can meet with the
20 police chief concerning David Pauch and numerous of other
21 officers whose names keep coming up in these particular
22 cases concerning the Indemnity Unit. Thank you very much.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, ma'am. And you
24 can speak to Deputy Chief Barren after the meeting as far
25 as contacting the chief of police. Would that be the young

1 man sitting to my -- after the meeting you can speak to
2 him. I'm pretty sure he can accommodate you.

3 MS. BLOSSOM: That was your last speaker, Mr.
4 Chair.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: If that was the last -- yes,
6 ma'am?

7 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: Motion to adjourn.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Just one second. One second.
9 One second. I mean, I'm the first one. I understand. I
10 just want to close by thanking the awardees tonight, Mr.
11 James Jackson, and Bishop DaRell Reed for being one of the
12 honorees, and Ms. Judith Roth for being one of the honorees
13 this evening. And thank you for coming out. I want you to
14 know that this is a volunteer board more or less, and we
15 interact with Chief Craig and Mayor Duggan as far as
16 ensuring best public safety practice in the Detroit. And
17 this board has a long district since 1974. I think without
18 a doubt we are going to continue in that capacity. So we
19 just appreciate your support.

20 Now the Chair will entertain a motion.

21 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: Motion to adjourn.

22 COMMISSIONER BROWN: So moved. I mean support.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been moved and
24 supported. Those in favor aye.

25 THE BOARD: Aye.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Meeting adjourned.
2 (At 8:34 p.m., proceedings concluded)

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

\$

\$12,535 81:13
\$132,000 17:17
\$25 81:12

1

1 60:2,8 71:9
1,697 17:10
1,838 51:5
10% 38:16
100 4:6 5:5 55:7
109 48:10
10th 27:24 43:1 45:6
11% 60:2
12% 38:13
13 40:21 76:24
13% 38:10
1301 76:21
131 50:19
135 49:10,17 81:1
137 51:22
13th 27:25 28:23,25
51:12
14 63:18
14% 60:7
15 25:13 44:4,6,10 50:16
51:12 55:2,5,6,10 60:14
150 55:9
158 48:6
16 17:8 76:20
17% 38:15
178 49:8
18 60:16
19 28:21

194 49:22
1966 27:15
1969 27:22
1972 28:21
1974 68:23 84:17
1982 28:23
1st 48:1 49:4

2

2 20:13
2,480 48:2
2,638 48:2
20 54:18 63:18
2005 82:9
2006 17:9
2010 30:8
2012 21:18
2013 21:5
2014 21:5
2017 21:5
2018 3:2 20:13 21:6
28:25 35:12 40:21 68:5
76:21
20th 65:15
21 38:11,12
21st 64:8
22 60:14 64:4
22% 60:18
23% 60:3
230 51:6
24 52:24 53:9 57:22,23,
25
242 62:3
25 60:15
25% 60:8 68:9

25th 65:16 70:20,21
27 60:17
28 61:12,19 68:16,17
2:00 40:21 51:15
2nd 28:20 43:1 45:6

3

3 60:2 73:10
3% 60:5
3,075 48:5
30 40:11 50:4 57:21
30% 60:25
30's 30:12
30s 44:25
30th 50:2 60:15
31 68:5
313 237-3100 48:16
31st 49:5 65:19
32 60:17
33 33:15
34 6:22
349 62:2
365 51:6
3:00 15:6 76:21
3rd 50:3

4

4% 60:4
40 17:5 50:2,6
401 49:6
4:00 40:21 51:16

5

5% 38:14

50 43:8
503 81:12
55 51:2
585 51:5
595 48:3
5th 28:15 65:17

6

6 73:4
60 62:4
65% 61:19 68:14
68 52:4
686 48:3
6:26 p.m 3:3
6:30 15:7 76:24
6:300 16:17
6:34 p.m 3:20
6:46 11:11
6:53 p.m 16:22
6th 43:1 45:6

7

7 22:20,23 26:8 73:5
7% 38:15
70 5:4
71 61:23

8

8 22:23
8% 60:7,9
80% 55:18
8:34 p.m 85:2

9

9 3:2 35:12
9% 60:3 61:20
90s 18:7
91 48:6
92% 48:5

A

ability 25:25
absence 47:20 51:21
absences 52:6
absolutely 12:7
abused 82:11
AC 11:1,6,9,13,18 25:11
37:14 38:6 40:10 43:10,
12
academy 17:5,8
accepted 43:21
access 17:24 72:7
accident 39:13,16
accommodate 15:12
84:2
accountability 24:4
achievement 36:2
acknowledge 29:10
69:11 70:3
acknowledges 31:17
35:5
Act 58:12
active 6:23 28:15 32:24
33:20 34:12 63:4
activism 29:11
activist 6:19 28:10
activities 71:1 77:2
activity 16:18 25:1
35:21 70:24

actual 53:12 70:13
ad 71:3,9,11,22
add 17:17 53:3 76:14
added 48:9 63:16
addition 69:14
additional 14:23 17:17,
18 25:9 48:8 53:21
address 18:15 24:23
43:14 44:2 56:17 57:1
61:3 62:18
addressed 46:22
addressing 46:19
adjourn 84:7,21
adjourned 85:1
adjudication 25:16
administration 8:8
33:19 56:21
administrative 69:12
Admitted 39:13
adopt 37:21
adopted 31:12,25 35:12
62:20
adoption 20:16
adoptions 82:13
Adult 15:14,18
Advancement 34:7
advantage 3:25
advertising 72:6
Advisory 31:11
Advocacy 16:4 17:1
advocate 6:25 62:17
affect 80:4
affiliations 34:6
African 59:6
Aftercare 62:21
age 30:13 78:14

agency 23:7
agenda 20:3
ages 63:18
Aggravated 38:14 60:3
aggregate 53:3
agility 48:24 49:10
50:21,23
agree 45:8 59:17 64:24
80:5
agreement 57:12
ahead 52:11 81:11
ahold 81:14
Akbar 10:7
Albion 53:5
Allen 53:6
alongside 17:8
Americans 58:12
amount 62:12 66:16
78:5 83:8
Andre 30:6,7
Angels 70:13
anger 37:12
ankle 39:9
Ann 33:6,9 36:1
announcement 45:11,
21 76:19
announcements 72:7
annual 34:20
Anthony 39:5
anybody's 16:25
apologize 15:16 19:19
appearance 24:5
appeared 50:20,22
appears 55:16
applause 10:18 13:1,2
14:1,2 16:10 29:24 30:4
32:2,15 33:8 35:14

36:19,25 41:9 43:3 45:25
69:24 70:8
applicant 54:19
applicants 49:6
application 5:10 49:9,
11,19,21,23 55:4 57:18
applications 48:20
apply 50:18
applying 8:18
appointed 21:20
approach 57:2
approve 20:3
Archer 8:8
Archer's 56:21
area 61:10,18 70:18 82:8
areas 18:18 53:13 82:14
Army 65:11
Arnold 25:3,6 43:5,16
arraignments 62:9
arrangements 25:15
array 24:22 82:10
arrest 44:13 53:13 61:14
62:4
arrested 39:17
arresting 74:5
arrests 78:13
article 22:20,23 25:13
articles 57:14
arts 7:9,13
Ashley 40:2
aspect 67:16
assault 38:13 44:15,16
assaulted 44:25
assaults 38:15 60:4
66:5,6,8
assessments 18:4

assignment 43:24
assignment's 43:7
assignments 27:24
 76:4,7
assist 56:2 62:17
assistance 18:4 80:14
assistant 10:4,11,25
 11:19 14:22 24:24 25:3,
 4,6,12,18 37:3,13 38:5
 43:6,18 47:6 51:10,11,25
 69:6 79:15
assisting 34:14,18
Associate 33:12
Association 28:12,13,
 14 31:7 34:7 57:13
At-large 5:23,25 6:1
Atmosphere 30:23
attend 31:5 40:23 73:3,
 16 79:16
attendance 3:13 12:12
attended 27:11,15,17,19
attende 82:4
ATTENDEES 3:6
attending 10:6 71:10
attends 34:14
attention 46:20
attorney 7:18 9:21 28:2
 41:15
attrition 51:17,19
audience 12:12 15:23
 27:3 38:25 72:9 75:19
audio 9:8
auditing 23:5
Auditorium 73:9
August 3:2 15:5 20:13
 26:8 35:12 40:21 50:1,3,
 7 51:12 64:7 65:15,16
 71:9 76:20

auspices 57:8
Authority 17:16
availability 82:15
Avenue 73:10
avoided 42:7
awaiting 44:18 49:7
award 28:24 35:22,24
 46:1,6 72:12
awarded 28:24
awardees 84:10
awards 36:15
aware 40:1,11 41:12
 43:17 80:25
aye 20:7,8,22,23 38:1,2
 84:24,25
Azar 12:4,7,8,20,22
 64:24 70:10

B

babies 78:25
babysitter 32:13
back 3:22 7:12 18:7,19
 21:10 26:18 27:20 31:3
 44:19 56:23 65:6 68:24
 75:22 77:15 80:18
background 6:16 49:24
Backpack 65:6
Bake 10:21
Banita 13:19
Baptist 73:4 79:17
bargaining 57:12
Barren 83:24
base 66:15
based 23:9 67:10
bases 14:14
basic 26:9
basically 12:14 76:6

basis 38:20 39:2 61:25
bear 16:5
beat 46:7
Beautification 34:17
Beckham 72:22
bed 62:1,2
beds 34:19
beginning 26:21 48:1,8
 49:5
begun 17:12
behalf 3:13 10:24 14:16,
 18 15:19 24:19 29:6
 57:19
behavior 80:5
beholden 81:7,9
believes 25:17
Bell 3:5,7,11,21 5:1,12,
 17,20 6:4,13 7:5,20 9:1
 10:9,16,19 11:5,8,19
 12:11,21,23 13:3,8,10,
 12,16,18,20,23,25 14:4,
 7,16 16:6,11 19:1,13,24
 20:1,6,9,17,19,24 22:12,
 17 27:2 29:25 32:4,16
 35:16,19 36:6 37:2,8,11,
 17,22,25 38:3 40:8 41:4
 42:22 43:11 45:9 46:10,
 16,25 47:2,4,14 52:8,11
 53:24 56:8,13,15 57:6,10
 58:15,21,24 59:8,11
 65:25 66:3,22 67:13
 68:20 69:21,23,25 70:9,
 21 75:9,25 76:15 77:9,
 13,19 79:7,14 80:20
 81:25 82:19 83:23 84:5,
 8,23 85:1
Betty 8:11
Bible 79:18
Biblical 30:18
big 64:16 78:2
birthday 10:14,20,22
 11:3

Bishop 32:1 59:18 84:11
Bishop-elect 30:1,3,6,7
 31:19
bit 9:19 11:6 61:9 67:24
 70:2 77:15
black 28:20,22 34:8
bless 22:15 36:16
block 17:5 33:23 73:16
Blossom 9:13 26:19
 71:13 77:4,6,8,10 79:9
 80:21 82:1 84:3
board 3:12,13 5:6 6:16
 7:1 9:2,21 10:4 11:1 13:5
 14:17,18,21 15:2,10,21
 19:2 20:8,23 21:12,17,
 22,24 22:10,23 23:4,14,
 16,22 24:9,21 26:2,5
 29:8,18 31:11,15,24 32:1
 33:18 35:3,11 37:6,14
 38:2,6,22,25 40:1,4,7,10
 43:17 44:1 46:19,23
 47:17,18,19 53:17 54:6
 58:17 75:13,14 76:10
 77:21 79:14 80:24 81:3,
 5,6,18,20,23 82:5,6,21
 84:14,17,25
boat 74:7
body 59:3
Boman 79:10 80:21,23
bond 62:12
bonds 62:10
born 8:3 27:10
Braidwood 27:16
breakdown 21:8,11
 53:12 58:16 63:7 68:4
Brenda 36:13
Bridget 9:22 24:10
 47:15,23 71:10 74:10,18
briefly 16:25
bring 23:22 54:25 63:5,
 18 64:10 67:16 77:19
 78:11

bringing 48:4 51:19
broad 82:10
broken 39:9 53:16
Brooks 6:1 7:6,7,21
8:11,20 13:19,20 45:9,
10,21 46:1,5,11 48:11
71:4,8,21 73:8 74:13,23
75:10,11,17 76:1
Brother 22:12
brought 46:19 81:3
Brown 9:11 19:15,19,22
30:2,3,5 39:5 41:6,10
56:8,9,12 66:21,23 67:7,
11 84:22
Bryant 72:11
budget 48:9 66:13
Buffalo 33:11
build 17:24
building 25:23
built 31:8,10
Burch 6:5
Bureau 57:9
Bureau/mi 28:2
burglaries 60:7
burst 45:17
Burton 6:6
bus 74:19
Bush 39:11
business 14:10 16:18
20:12 26:25 28:12 30:17
76:17,18
Bussi 39:9
busy 50:1

C

cable 3:15
cake 10:21

calculation 55:17
call 4:8,9,10 27:25 30:11
34:15 48:16 49:15 50:13
63:5,13 77:4,13
called 4:13 17:21 63:17
72:22
calling 14:11
calls 4:11
calmly 78:16
campaign 34:21
candidates 24:12 81:16
capacities 41:1
capacity 12:6,18 51:22
84:18
captain 12:16 24:18,20
59:15,16 64:10 66:1,6,20
67:5,8 68:3,7,12,18
69:12,22 70:2,3 71:5,7
74:22
card 26:18 77:11
cards 26:20 77:8
care 19:18 39:4 64:2
82:13
career 28:19 74:4 82:11
caring 35:6
carjacking 38:14
carried 20:25
carries 78:3
carry 36:15 56:25
Carter 6:6 26:13,14
case 23:5 25:14 43:8
44:5,6,10,11
cases 44:14 83:9,22
casework 82:12
catch 32:11
Cease 61:6,7
celebrate 10:23 11:3
51:14

celebrated 40:13
celebrating 10:14
center 3:18 15:19,20
16:15
centers 17:24
Central 28:1 33:10
CEO 15:20
ceremony 50:2
certification 41:25
certified 17:6 41:24
chair 3:11 6:8 9:4 19:14,
22,25 20:2 21:2 22:12
26:13 30:2 37:15,19 41:6
43:12 66:21 67:15 76:12
77:8 84:4,20
chairman 79:13,14
chairperson 28:17
64:25
challenged 47:17
Chalmers 28:11,14,17
Chandler 70:17,22,23
changed 43:7
channel 3:15 72:8
chaplain 3:16,21,23 4:3,
4,5 5:2,3,9,14,16,19
62:18,21
chaplains 4:7,8 5:4,8
chapter 22:20,23 73:3
charges 44:20
charging 11:24 75:12
Charlie 72:22
charter 21:18 22:20,22
81:2,17
chastise 63:20
checks 62:1,2
chemicals 41:20
chief 10:1,5,9,11,12,13,
15,16,19,22,25 11:1,12,

19 14:22 19:2 23:18
24:25 25:3,4,6,12,18,22
37:3,13 38:5 41:7,19
43:6,18,20,23 44:1,6,9
45:3,8 46:13,17 47:1,5,6,
7,11,13,19 51:10,11,25
57:15 67:5,15,20 68:5,8,
13,17,19 69:6 71:13
79:15 80:15 83:7,16,20,
24,25 84:15
chief's 24:24 43:17
47:20 71:16 72:15
child 78:6,19
children 27:10 32:12
34:25 78:17,18
choosing 26:4
Christmas 15:3
Christopher 39:11,12
Chrysler 27:21
church 30:9,22 32:9,18
73:4,5,7,11 75:19,22
79:17
circle 29:13
CIT 17:21
cities 53:1 54:18
citizen 6:25 14:21 23:2,
3,6,17 24:5 26:1 29:6
37:7,10 54:13 63:12
citizens 4:20 18:17
23:24 28:10 29:15 31:16,
21 35:4,9 36:1 47:21
62:17 63:6,9 65:3,22
Citizens' 28:17
city 6:21 8:16 15:8,11
19:3 22:20,22 23:20,22
28:9 29:9,16 31:12,16,22
32:21,24 35:4,9,23 36:5,
14,17 47:22 50:15,18
51:4 52:14,15 53:4,9
54:15,17,20 57:12 58:13
67:3 69:6 80:10,24 81:2,
7,9,13
city's 48:20

city-wide 67:9 73:8,14
civic 34:9
civil 23:3
civilian 22:24 23:1,15
 24:1 48:3,7,9,18,19
 50:12 51:3,7,19 52:4
civilians 23:24,25 51:6
 52:13
clap 10:17
clarity 67:16 68:20
class 50:5
clear 13:8
clerk 33:14
Clinical 30:16
clinician 82:8,9
close 69:8 70:9 84:10
closely 8:23 17:13 68:25
closure 60:18
club 33:23 73:16
CNN 79:22
co-responder 17:4,12,
 23
co-responders 17:18
co-starred 29:1
Coal 71:11
coffee 4:15
cognitive 18:2
cold 43:8 44:5,6,10,11
collective 57:12 83:10
college 27:17,19,20
 31:5 33:13
Collins 33:10
Colored 34:7
Colture 10:8
comfortable 77:16
command 47:20

commander 12:15
 24:18 59:22 70:4
commend 32:1
commenting 45:5
comments 11:4 26:21
 46:12 52:9
commission 4:12 21:16
 81:16,17
commissioner 3:5,7,
 10,21 5:1,12,17,20,22,
 23,24 6:1,2,4,5,6,9,11,
 13,14,17,18 7:5,6,7,10,
 20,22,23 8:1,2,8,9,11,19
 9:1 10:9,16,19 11:5,8,19
 12:10,11,21,23 13:3,8,
 10,12,16,18,20,23,25
 14:4,7,16 16:6,11 19:1,
 13,19,24 20:1,4,5,6,9,15,
 16,17,18,19,24 21:3
 22:17 27:2,4 29:25 30:3,
 5 32:4,16 33:4,5 34:3,5
 35:16,18,19 36:6 37:1,2,
 8,11,17,21,22,24,25 38:3
 40:8 41:4,6,10 42:21,22,
 23 43:4,11 44:4,8 45:1,5,
 9,10 46:1,5,10,16,25
 47:2,3,4,14 48:11 52:8,
 10,11,12,19 53:19,23,24,
 25 54:4,14,23 55:8,13,20
 56:5,8,9,12,13,15 57:6,
 10 58:15,21,24 59:8,11
 65:25 66:2,3,4,12,19,21,
 22,23 67:7,11,13 68:20
 69:21,23,25 70:9,21
 71:4,8,10,19,21 73:7,8
 74:13,23 75:9,11,17,25
 76:15 77:9,13,19 79:7
 80:20 81:25 82:19 83:23
 84:5,7,8,21,22,23 85:1
commissioners 5:20
 6:4 7:2,18 13:6 15:2,21
 19:17 21:12,18,19,23,24
 22:10,24 23:4,14 29:8,18
 31:15,24 35:3,12 40:8
 41:4 52:8 65:25 76:5
 79:14 80:24 81:3,6,18,24
 82:21
commitment 35:7

committed 4:8 8:16,23
 25:17 29:11 31:18 62:13
 66:10
committee 7:14 8:11,22
 71:3,9,11,22 74:14 76:2,
 3,7
committing 62:11
communication 26:17
 63:8 77:3
communities 6:24 7:4,
 12 72:6,23 74:2
community 3:24 6:19
 7:9 15:7,9,23 16:3,8,12,
 13 17:1 18:16,23 23:2,11
 27:20 28:10,15 29:11,13
 30:25 31:2,9 32:23,25
 33:12,21 35:8,21 59:9,22
 62:15 63:4,5 67:24 68:11
 69:2 70:10 71:14 72:10,
 21 76:23
community-building
 34:21
Company 27:21
comparison 60:12
complain 7:16
complaint 23:6
complaints 23:17 26:1
 63:12
complete 46:21 49:11
completing 51:15
Compstat 24:25 26:3,6
 38:7
conceive 78:6
concern 14:19,20 56:15
 76:5
concerned 29:6 52:20
 83:11
concerns 21:14 41:5
 46:22 66:1 67:14
concluded 85:2
concludes 41:2 51:12
 52:6

concurred 43:21
condition 57:22 80:1,2
conditions 80:4
conduct 44:15
conducted 64:22
conducting 3:12
conducts 62:1
confines 32:18
congratulate 26:7
congratulations 26:12
Congress 80:16
Conner 73:10
considered 64:14
construction 25:20
 46:21
contact 49:12,14 62:3
 81:15
contacted 25:3 83:17
contacting 83:25
continual 67:23
continue 21:1 22:19
 38:8,19 56:24 79:1,6
 84:18
continues 14:21 35:20
 39:3,7 46:18 67:21
continuous 51:23
contributes 34:21,24
control 22:25 24:5
Controls 28:1
conversation 4:14,15
convicted 83:3
cook 41:14
Cooper 13:22,23,24
cooperation 15:11
Coordination 16:8
Coordinator 9:14

Cop 65:10,15,16 66:12
copy 73:22
corner 74:5
Corp 3:21
Corps 3:23 4:4,5 5:2,14
62:18
correct 10:15 15:15
63:14
correctly 72:25 79:12
Costumes 35:1
council 22:2 28:16,18
33:25 34:2 35:23 36:5
81:8
councilman 22:3,5,8,17
36:7,8,10 65:7,17 70:11
Counseling 30:18
County 74:25
couple 11:13 15:25
18:22 39:24 41:1 42:21
46:23
court 6:9 9:9 33:14
covered 14:14 76:13
covering 5:5
covers 22:1
Craig 10:13 19:3 25:3
80:15 84:15
Cream 28:6 65:10,15
credits 50:14
crew 28:21 61:7
crime 24:22,23 25:1 28:2
38:8 59:25 60:1,11 61:11
62:13 78:13
crimes 25:16 83:13
criminal 19:6 44:15 83:9
crisis 17:22 18:15 80:7
critical 19:6 23:11
39:15,18
crucial 16:11 21:15,20,
24

cruiser 28:21,23
CSC 60:2
current 48:6 61:11 64:2,
3 81:2
Curtis 69:17 71:17
custody 66:11
cut 74:10
cutting 69:2

D

D-DOT 74:19
dad 78:10,15,19
daily 31:1
Dalton 40:2
Dana 79:10 80:21 82:1
Danger 65:12
Darell 30:1,6,7 31:19
84:11
Darryl 19:14,22
data 24:15 26:3 33:11
68:6
date 49:21 61:22 70:18
dates 73:9
daughter 41:16
David 83:11,20
Davis 6:2,14,17,18 20:4,
15,18 37:24 42:21,23
43:4 44:4,8 45:1,5 47:3
52:10,12,19 53:19,23
66:2,4,12,19 73:7
day 11:2 12:2 34:17
38:20 39:2 61:12 65:7,16
70:18
day-to-day 75:13
days 25:4 40:1 46:24
57:21 61:19 68:16,17
DC 25:10 80:16
deal 62:8

dealing 19:9 58:16
dealt 32:20
Debbie 80:17
decision 43:18
decisions 43:24
Decker 70:4
decrease 61:18,20
68:15
dedicated 35:6
dedicates 34:13
dedication 31:18 35:7
36:3
definition 80:1
degree 30:19 33:12
degrees 30:17
Delegate 34:11
democracy 24:2 26:10
democratic 24:3 26:10
department 6:22 7:1
8:10,22,25 9:23 12:9
22:11,25 23:16,18 24:12,
13,14 25:8,19 27:23
28:20 29:10 31:17 34:10
35:5 38:19 39:21,24
40:25 41:2,8 42:10,12,19
48:4,13 51:18 72:23 81:8
department's 9:23
deployed 40:12 73:19
deputy 12:18 33:14 43:6
83:24
designated 21:3
desire 47:8
detail 54:8,24
detailed 43:5
details 54:2
detection 14:21
detective 44:11 62:9
determination 57:25

determine 57:15
Detroit 3:1,16 4:3,4 6:21
8:2,3,4,16,17 15:9,11
17:7,15 19:3,7 22:20,22,
23 23:12,15,20 25:16,17
27:22 28:9,19 29:1,8,9,
10,17 31:13,15,16,17,23
32:24 33:23,24 35:3,4,5,
9,22,24 36:1,5,13,15
38:19 42:9 45:15 50:12,
14,15,18 51:4 52:14,15,
20,25 53:4,20,21 54:10,
16,17 55:1,11 57:12,13
58:14 65:17 79:22 80:24
81:9 83:1 84:16
Detroitier 51:5
Detroiters 8:18 21:17
50:17 51:6,8,9 53:2,8,16
59:5
Detroitmi.gov. 48:20
developmental 18:2
devotion 29:14 31:20
Dewaelsche 5:22 8:1,2
9:2 20:5,16 33:4,5 34:3,5
35:18 37:21 53:24,25
54:4,14,23 55:8,13,20
56:5 71:11,19 84:7,21
DIA 29:3
dialogue 63:7,25 64:5
died 39:25
difficult 8:18
difficulties 16:24
diligent 65:2
direct 25:8
directco.light 81:15
direction 42:15 61:5
directly 9:11
director 9:22 15:14,19
24:10 47:15,16,23 83:1
disabilities 18:3
disability 57:16,18 58:7,
8,12

disabled 57:17
discriminatory 23:7
discuss 24:21 72:1
73:24
discussed 72:2,3,18
73:20
discussion 20:10,21
37:25 47:8,9
disobedient 78:18
dispensary 32:20
dispense 14:10
disqualified 49:18,20,
22,24 52:16
disruption 25:25
distribute 73:17
district 3:11 6:2,19
11:24 12:8,9,13,14,17
14:6 15:10 19:15,22
21:4,7 22:3,5,13 26:14
27:5 28:1,18 42:25 64:23
73:4,5,10,11,12,13,24
84:17
Distrust 23:13
diversity 72:3
division 43:19 48:14
65:9
DMC 30:16
DNA 44:13,14
Dock 13:22
Doctoral 30:18
documentary 29:1
dollars 23:21
domestic 62:19,23
domicile 50:13
donated 66:16
donates 34:20
donating 34:25 65:8
donations 34:22

Donna 9:8
door 3:9
Doris 13:17
double 40:3 78:5
doubt 84:18
Downtown 17:14
downward 61:5
DPD 24:10 27:6 28:22
47:20 73:2
draft 33:17 37:5
drafting 37:9
dream 30:21
dry 22:14
DTD 25:17
due 53:19 62:4 63:15
Duggan 84:15
duties 58:9,14
duty 15:1 25:2 51:21,22
56:16,18,19,22,24,25
57:5,7,11,15,16,18 58:3,
6

E

earlier 15:16 41:22
65:14 79:21 80:6 82:4
early 18:7 30:12 82:10
earned 33:12
easier 71:15
east 19:15 28:12 33:22
61:16
eastside 19:16 41:12
echo 15:15 51:25
edge 69:2
education 8:6 30:15,16
62:19 64:23
effective 23:10 24:15
effectiveness 23:13

efforts 8:21
eighth 15:9 41:11
Eighty-nine 50:20
elaborate 21:13
elected 6:18 11:21,22
21:3,4,19,20 26:12 81:3,
19,23
election 26:8 81:23
Elections 34:10
eleven 17:14
Eleventh 17:20
eliminate 23:7
Elizabeth 6:1
embedded 62:16
emotional 80:3
emphasize 8:17
employed 33:16
employment 18:5 31:2,
11 47:25 82:7
empowered 22:24
EMTS 42:1
Encounters 65:12
encourage 50:17,23
51:13 78:21 79:5
end 5:4 26:16 50:1,6
61:17
enforce 57:23
enforcement 23:1 25:1
27:18 57:24 61:24 62:7
engage 58:11 70:11
engaging 70:24
English 33:21,23
enjoy 7:13 65:4 82:5
enlightened 5:13
ensure 62:9
ensuring 84:16

Entail 62:6
entertain 20:2 37:19
52:6 84:20
entitled 29:2
envy 26:10
Eric 24:18 39:8,9
Essential 57:23
establish 44:1
esteem 35:25
Eva 5:22 8:2 33:4 71:10
evening 3:5,6,7 8:1 9:8
10:4 11:1,16 12:7 15:17
19:10 21:9 22:8 37:14
38:6 47:17,18 59:16
79:13 82:3,7,16,20 84:13
evening's 20:3
event 4:23 15:24 40:24
63:17
events 41:12 65:13
everyday 48:11
everyone's 42:17 50:8
Ewing 24:18 59:22
ex-marine 45:13 46:6
exact 18:11
exam 54:10,17 55:16
excellent 56:12 58:22
59:14 66:24
exceptional 36:2
excited 15:24 17:11
excuse 37:15 50:4 51:10
excused 6:5
executive 47:20
exist 23:14
existence 81:4
expanded 21:18
expectation 18:21
expecting 43:4

experience 30:24 66:18
82:10
explain 57:4
exposed 41:20
express 14:17,19
expression 35:25
extend 17:16 26:12
extra 36:9 39:19 50:16
extradition 44:19
eyes 23:23,25

F

face 27:2,3 72:12 75:13
82:17
facilities 15:12 18:8
facility 19:5 25:23 39:4,
13 42:10
facing 44:20
fact 64:13
Fadi 39:14
failed 52:14 53:12
failing 52:16
fair 68:13
fairs 73:12
Faith 77:11,18,21,24
fall 65:22
fallen 14:19,24
false 83:9,12
familiar 4:4
families 72:17 77:25
78:2 83:4
family 26:15 39:20 40:4
52:1 65:7,16 66:8 70:18
77:22
family's 72:18
father 30:10 45:15

favor 20:7,22 38:1,3
81:2 84:24
favorite 16:3
Federal 33:16
feedback 4:2
feel 63:22
feeling 61:4
feels 78:24
felt 63:15 72:13
female 72:13,16
females 44:24
fiance 40:2
field 24:17 40:12 82:12
Fifteen 51:3
fighting 24:22 29:2
39:17
fight 52:2
file 63:12
fill 8:13 48:5
filled 48:2,3,4
film 29:1
final 46:23
financing 81:14
find 7:11 18:5 31:4 72:16
finds 31:2
fine 22:11
finish 40:9 65:13,16
Fire 42:9 61:6,7
firearms 46:4,5
firefighter 42:2
firefighters 41:25
fiscal 9:18 48:1,8 49:6
fix 49:20
fliers 72:5,18 74:19
75:20,21

float 34:23 70:13,14
floor 63:20,21 65:24
flowers 34:19
flows 30:20
FMLA 51:23 52:5
focus 17:21 27:18 32:19
focused 18:17 72:4
folks 18:12,13
follow 67:4 74:1
follow-up 49:15
force 23:8 24:16 83:2
Ford 27:19,21
forefront 23:4
form 8:7 81:15
format 40:15
forthcoming 76:25
fortunate 34:24 42:25
Forty 50:22 51:3
forum 59:9 63:19
forums 18:24
forward 7:13 22:4 27:1
28:7 46:18 71:1 77:14
foster 82:13
found 18:10 62:3 81:12
founding 24:2
Fourth 17:19 76:24,25
frame 21:19 77:7,17
Francisco 80:7
Frank 33:15
frankly 43:13 44:10
free 83:3
freeway 70:5
fret 48:7 50:5
Friday 40:12 45:22
friend 27:6 64:10

front 9:17 16:4 59:20
63:11
frontline 42:2
FTES 48:5
fulfilling 76:8
full 59:23
full-time 17:19
fully 3:24
Fun 65:7 70:18
functions 9:15 57:23,25
58:1
funeral 39:25 40:3
funerals 4:17
future 57:2 58:18

G

Gaines 70:15,16
Gains 69:17
gamut 59:6
Gang 28:4 62:6
Gardner 24:19,20 59:15,
16 66:6,20 67:5,8 68:3,7,
12,18 69:12,22 71:5,7
74:22
garner 49:16
Garza 5:22 8:2
Gate 73:5
gave 32:7 64:16 73:1
75:22
General 28:2
Generally 66:15
generous 29:14 31:20
gentleman 75:22
George 72:11 77:12
79:9,13
gift 30:20
girls 63:17 82:11

give 6:15 10:16 12:25
13:6 14:1,13 16:9 27:4,5
36:15 41:8 53:11 54:7,21
56:1 57:22 59:24 70:19
73:22 75:23 77:6 83:15

Giveaway 65:6

giving 18:19 26:22 37:3

glad 13:13 19:22 41:14

gladly 48:15

goal 5:4 50:6 64:17
74:16

goals 72:2

God 22:15 36:16

Gonzalez 71:19,20,24

good 3:5,6,7,8 8:1 10:4
11:1,16 12:7 15:17 22:8,
15 37:14 38:6 40:24
41:10 42:18,20 44:10
46:8 47:17,18 55:21,23
59:1,16 67:18 73:1 79:13
82:3,20,21

gosh 7:7 17:7

government 3:15 33:17
72:7

Gracen 13:17

graduated 8:5 33:9
40:11,18 45:22 50:4

graduates 45:18

graduating 40:20

graduation 45:12

Grand 73:6

grandkids 28:8

grandmother 45:12,20

grandson 45:22 75:16

grant 17:16

grateful 18:24

gratitude 35:25

great 4:24 36:17 42:14,
19 55:13 56:5 71:23

greater 47:21

Greer 27:15

Gregory 9:3

grill 41:15

ground 12:2

growing 79:2

guess 9:21 21:25 78:9

guest 77:22

Guidance 15:19,20

gun 62:8,11

guns 61:23

gunshot 39:5,7,8

guys 42:3 82:22 83:16

H

Habitat 31:8

half 12:1 51:8,20

hall 33:15 36:14

Halloween 34:23,25
65:19

hand 10:16 39:12 41:8
74:19

handled 47:10

handout 21:9

hands 33:1

hang 70:22

happened 73:21 75:18
79:22

happy 11:3 38:20 40:17
59:14 64:24 71:6

hard 8:13 11:24 38:18
80:13

hardest 75:12

hardworking 29:11
31:18 35:6

harm 63:15

hazardous 41:20

He'll 77:19

head 39:10

headquarters 15:4
40:22 51:15 76:21

heads 77:6

healing 30:20

health 17:16 18:16
78:13 79:21,25 80:2

hear 3:8 15:6 37:5 38:4
43:5 59:3 64:11 69:6
78:11

heard 32:18 45:14 46:7

hearing 59:12

Hearns 40:2

Heart 75:21

heckler 64:14

held 16:17 28:11

helicopter 74:6

helped 31:11 40:25

helpful 25:24

helping 8:10 18:19
36:23 74:11,14 81:10

helps 7:19

Henderson 16:7 73:9

Henderson's 16:20

Henry 27:19

Henson 16:9

herewith 35:24

Herman 69:18,20

hey 41:17 42:13

Hicks 6:7,8 9:3,4 14:14,
15 19:25 37:15 71:2
76:11,12,15

high 8:5 27:11,13 33:10
48:25

higher 52:15 64:9

highest 29:17 31:23
35:10 54:16

hire 41:1 49:25

hired 50:1

hires 51:2,7,8

hiring 24:13

historic 21:11 32:24

history 28:22 53:14

hit 5:5 12:2 39:5 44:14

hoc 71:3,9,11,22

hold 83:14

holding 26:20 73:11

holiday 15:3

Holley 5:24 6:11 7:22,23
37:1 82:25 83:17

home 28:14 32:11 39:6,
7,9,11,12

homeowners 31:3

homes 44:25

homicide 38:11 62:6

homicides 38:11,12
44:22,24 60:20 61:1,3
67:22,25 68:9

hone 79:20,21 80:18

honor 33:6 35:20

Honorable 47:17

honorably 28:3

honored 36:22 81:21

honorees 84:12

honoring 27:7 30:5 33:6

hope 18:22 24:21 26:5
56:3 61:15 79:24 80:11
82:22

hoping 17:17,21 55:22
64:8 73:25 75:23 81:5,22

horse 33:24 34:1,2

hospital 18:3 30:17
33:19

hospitals 18:9 80:18
host 64:7
hosting 15:24 19:10
65:10
hotspots 24:22
hour 17:5 64:5
hours 34:13
housed 18:8
houses 31:9,10
housing 18:4
HR 47:15
hug 64:16
huge 56:21 62:12
human 9:23 24:10 57:8
77:23
Humanity 31:8
hundred 31:8,10 49:17
55:8
Huron 27:17,19

I

IBM 33:10
Ice 28:6 65:10,14
idea 58:17
ideas 73:2 75:6
identified 66:9
identify 44:17
identifying 60:10
ill 30:11 82:14
Illinois 27:16
illness 18:1,8 80:3,11
image 79:2,3
imagine 43:22
impacts 19:6
impedes 23:13

important 11:13 24:2,6,
15 42:8 54:24 78:3
impressed 41:13 66:25
improve 23:21
improving 29:15 31:21
36:4
incarcerated 83:4
incident 4:14 42:4
include 17:17 34:6
includes 34:9
including 14:25 27:24
incorporate 17:23
incorporates 17:3
increase 60:25 61:4,13
62:12 68:9
increases 68:2
increasing 23:11
Indemnity 83:22
indicating 25:4
indicative 38:18
indigenous 23:12
individual 52:13 62:13,
22 66:9,13
individuals 18:2 61:15
78:8
infant 78:12
information 14:24 24:8,
11,14 25:2,10,11 26:4
43:5,8 44:12,23 54:25
61:8 62:24 64:5 65:3
66:24 73:14 83:6,15,19
informed 47:11
initial 49:14
initiatives 65:20
injured 14:20,22,24,25
52:1
injuries 38:23 58:4
injury 39:11,18

inquiries 44:16
inside 83:5
Inspector 34:10
instance 39:16 53:5
institutions 8:6
instruction 78:22,23
instrumental 34:16
74:13
integral 19:21
intent 76:16
interact 28:7 73:17
84:15
interacting 70:5
interaction 47:12
interactive 58:11
interest 49:10,16,17
82:8
interested 5:8,9 49:3
50:9,13 81:10,14
interesting 40:15
interim 9:22 24:10 30:9
47:15,23 79:18
intermittent 51:23 52:5
Internal 28:1
International 73:5
interns 40:21,24 51:12
internship 51:11,15
interpretation 30:21
Intervention 17:22
introduce 5:21 9:2,3
10:2,11 11:7,10,14 12:3,
5 16:7 69:9 82:4,16
introducing 9:6
introduction 7:21 21:25
22:2
introductions 9:10
investigate 23:16

investigating 23:5
investigator 10:1,2,5,7,
8,10 25:22
invite 40:23
invocation 3:16,17,20
involved 70:12 83:8
involvement 6:25 26:22
32:22 34:9 58:22 69:1,5
70:7 83:12
involvements 32:25
involves 62:13
involving 25:14 44:24
issue 44:3 47:10 56:17,
20 79:21 83:5,17
issues 18:15 19:8 21:14
32:13 46:19 59:4 60:10
61:3 63:8,14 65:3 80:9
83:7
item 20:12 26:25 59:11
71:2 76:10
items 76:13

J

Jack 28:5 29:13,20
Jackson 27:1,8,9,11,22
28:25 29:12,20,22 84:11
jail 18:11,12
James 10:8,12 14:22
24:25 25:14 26:25 27:8,
9,11 29:12 39:6 40:2
43:8 44:9 71:11 84:11
Jay 16:7,8,19
Jefferson 28:11,12,14,
17
Jermain 41:16
Jim 5:24 7:22
job 4:24 13:14 21:21
22:11 40:14 42:14,19
59:14 66:24 67:21 82:21

jobs 8:18 43:2
jogging 32:9
Johnson 9:18 39:3
join 48:13
joined 19:14 27:22
joining 3:14 9:14 49:3
Joint 31:10
Jones 36:13
Jordan 79:11 82:2,20
83:1
journey 18:20
Jr 27:1,8,9 30:10
Juanita 27:10
judge 7:16 79:24
Judith 13:7,9 33:6,9
36:1 84:12
July 47:24,25 49:4,5
50:1,3 51:2,17 60:16,23
jump 49:1
June 60:15,22,23
Junior 27:17,19
justice 19:7 33:15 82:13
83:9
Justin 33:7,9 39:10
Justine 36:1
juvenile 82:13

K

KAEUGZ 83:9,12
Karen 11:17
Kavari 72:24
keeping 81:2
key 10:12
Kids 28:7
kind 9:15 16:5 75:1
kinds 78:14

King 69:18
Kirwood 71:12 72:15
Kisselburg 39:6
knew 52:17
Knight 69:17,18

L

lack 49:10,17
ladies 63:18 64:4 66:25
69:19
lady 52:12 79:20,25 80:5
lagging 75:1
Lamar 9:22,23 24:10
47:15,16,23 52:17,21
53:22 54:3,22 55:6,10,
19,22 56:7,10,11,13,14
57:4,7,11 58:19,23 59:7,
10 71:10 74:12 79:8
larcenies 60:7
large 75:20
largest 4:5
late 19:20 30:10
law 23:1 25:1 27:17
57:23 58:12
Lawyers 34:8
lay 33:1
leader 70:10
leaders 16:12
leadership 16:20 25:7
36:3
lean 18:23
leave 22:14 51:24 52:5
leaves 51:21
leaving 60:4,8 72:20
left 5:21 7:21 9:20 10:11
64:10 82:25
Legislation 31:12

LEIN 53:15
Lena 69:13
Leroy 30:10 39:25
letter 49:15
letting 3:25 64:19 74:3
79:8
Letty 12:4,8 64:24,25
70:10
level 26:11 29:5 46:20
56:2 64:18
licensed 82:9
lieutenant 69:13 71:11,
16
life 23:12,22 29:15 31:21
36:4 39:17 52:3 69:4
lighter 40:10
lightly 36:11
likeness 79:2,3
Likewise 12:22
linked 44:15
Linwood 17:5
Lisa 6:6 15:13,18 26:13
listing 14:21
live 45:15 53:21 68:25
living 6:20 14:6
local 26:11
locally 24:7
located 26:18
location 18:3 25:21
76:25
locations 41:13
lock 69:19 75:23
long 22:13 83:14 84:17
long-standing 5:15
long-term 39:4 56:17
58:5
longer 6:20 58:9

longstanding 25:7
looked 44:14,21,24
60:10,11,21 61:11,12
66:8
lot 7:8 38:9,17 41:16
44:22 54:5 58:3,4 63:3,
22 65:8,20 72:17,21
73:25 74:7,10 78:3 80:10
82:14
loud 13:8
love 8:3,9,10 30:8,22,24
36:23 78:24
loved 83:4
lovely 32:11
loves 30:15
lower 46:20
loyal 28:9
lunch 45:18

M

M-CODE 17:6
Machine 28:6
made 25:15 43:17,18,20,
24 44:16 52:25 53:8
main 7:1
maintaining 24:15
34:19
major 32:19 62:6
majority 52:24 53:2 81:7
make 3:22 5:5,7 7:3 8:14
18:18 19:17 23:19 26:17
31:2 32:12 35:17 40:16
45:11,21 49:12,14 52:23
53:2 62:2 63:24 64:17
77:16 81:17 82:23
makes 57:25
making 8:23 9:24 24:20
41:23
man 7:21 10:11 28:8
41:15 84:1

Management 30:18
manager 12:14 64:24
managers 11:25 73:12
managing 58:3,5,17
mandate 73:3
manner 16:19
marijuana 32:20
Marilyn 79:11 82:1 83:1
mark 5:5
married 39:21
Marroquin 39:10
marry 4:16
Marszalec 15:14,17,18
16:23 19:11
materials 73:17
matter 19:2 43:19 44:2
47:6,7 64:13
Matthews 25:14,16 44:9
Matthis 43:9
Maxey 69:15
mayor 11:23 12:17
21:20 23:18 56:21 84:15
mayor's 70:10 73:13
81:8
Mccalister 9:25 10:4,5
MCOLES 49:7 50:19
Mcrill 15:21
MDOC 62:1
meaning 49:11
means 49:8,18,23 50:9
69:8 72:2
MEC 33:22
media 9:7,13 71:12,14,
15 72:2,4,5,15 74:17
medical 41:24 49:9
51:24 52:5 56:16 57:21
medications 78:14

meet 4:15 15:2,3,6,10,16
16:14 74:9 83:15,19
meeting 3:12,14,15 4:12
8:20 9:6,7,16,24 10:6
13:4,5 14:11 15:8,9 16:8,
17,18 20:3 22:9 25:9
26:16 37:12 44:1 65:22
71:10,18 72:1,10,13
73:8,21,24 74:15 75:20
76:14,19,23 82:5,6 83:6,
24 84:1 85:1
meeting's 74:16
meetings 3:25 15:12
31:1 54:5,7,18 73:3,16
meets 43:23
Melissa 24:19
member 28:13,15,20
31:10 33:17,20,23 38:25
39:20
members 8:22 10:3
15:23 26:5 29:9 31:2
35:23 38:19 47:19 50:4
51:3,18,22 52:1,4 54:6
57:20 58:6 63:4 75:19
77:22 81:7,19
membership 5:2 28:11
men 29:2 48:12
mental 17:15 18:1,8,16
78:13 79:21,25 80:1,3,11
mentally 82:13
mention 50:11 71:21
76:13
mentioned 41:19 79:17
80:15
merits 29:17 31:23
35:10
met 71:9
method 17:4
Methodist 73:10
mic 3:18,22 4:2 12:5
14:18 22:6 32:7
Michelle 77:11 79:9

Michigan 3:1 19:7
33:13,24 34:9 40:22
44:19 51:16
Michiganian 72:11
Mile 21:8
Miles 45:21
milestone 10:22
military 33:17 51:24
56:18
mind 52:22
mine 27:6
ministry 30:12
minutes 15:25 20:13
26:23 77:3
miracles 30:21,23
mirror 78:7
mirrors 78:7
misconduct 23:7
missed 25:9 41:17
mixture 78:16
mobile 27:25 80:7
mobility 17:25
model 17:22 67:3 80:6
modify 23:19
mom 59:19 78:10,15,18
Monday 40:21 51:12
65:11
money 66:16
monies 34:25
monitor 23:17
month 15:5,7 16:14
51:17 58:20 60:12,21
74:9,14 80:16
monthly 24:9,11 47:24
Morality 28:1
morning 32:9 59:18
72:8

Morningside 31:7,9
32:23
Morningside-east
33:21
mother 32:3,8
mothers 32:9
motion 20:2,24 37:19,
21,25 38:4 84:7,20,21
motor 27:21 39:15 60:7
motorcycle 39:13
move 14:8 25:24 26:24
37:2 46:18 47:14 53:20
77:2,7,14,17
moved 20:4,6,15,16,19
37:22 45:15 84:22,23
moving 16:24 33:2 40:6,
10 42:15
Moxey 11:16,17
MPO 69:17
MPOS 11:13 64:22 69:9,
15 70:4 73:15
multiple 4:9
municipal 81:22
murder 60:2
murderer 83:8
Murphy 33:15
Mutual 23:10

N

NAACP 34:8
naked 80:10
names 83:10,21
Nanny 14:3,5
nation 4:6 19:8
national 4:22 29:5 34:6,
20 40:13,16,18 41:7
42:24
nationally 24:6

naturally 36:23
nature 15:8
needed 80:13
neglected 82:11
neighbor 22:6
neighborhood 13:11
 17:13 22:12 31:7 32:21
 33:22 72:23 73:18,19
neighborhoods 12:10
 75:4
news 25:15
newsletter 21:10
newspaper 25:13
nice 34:3 37:1
Nichols 10:7
Nicole 71:12 72:15
night 4:22 22:15 34:20
 40:13,16,18 41:7,18
 42:24 70:13
ninety-four 50:21
Ninth 17:19 22:1 69:25
 70:3,5
Nobles 14:3,4,5
nominee 26:14
non-detroiters 51:6,7
 53:16 59:5
noncriminal 23:17
nonduty 57:17,18 58:6
nonfatal 38:15 60:11,14,
 19
nonresidents 53:7
north 33:9 70:4
Northeast 15:19,20,22
 16:2 17:2
Northeastern 27:11,13
Northville 18:9
Notary 34:10

note 21:25 26:13 51:20
notified 10:19
NPO 13:13
NPOS 12:15 65:12
number 18:12 40:14
 43:12 44:21,24 49:1
 52:15 54:16 56:21 57:15
 72:3
numbers 53:4,10,13,14,
 15 56:16 67:25 68:4
numerous 83:8,12,20

O

Oak 33:13
Oakland 33:12
obedient 78:18
objective 23:20
obtain 83:6
obtained 26:19
occurred 44:22
October 65:19
offenders 61:9
offense 38:16
offenses 60:4,6,9 62:11
offers 19:5
office 10:1 11:11 25:21
 36:10 43:18 48:16 70:10
 71:16 73:13 81:8,19
officer 4:9,10,14 11:16
 13:11 14:20,25 17:23
 28:24 35:20 36:8 39:3,5,
 6,8,10,14,17,19 40:1
 45:16 47:19 48:23 49:25
 52:2 57:24 58:10 66:15
 67:12,19 68:16 70:15
 72:11 74:4,8 79:24
 83:10,11
officers 4:19,23 5:6 7:15
 14:20,22,24 15:22 17:4,
 10,13,25 18:23 34:15

38:23 39:1 40:11 41:20,
 24 42:14,18 48:10 50:2,8
 53:20 57:13 62:18,22
 63:6,9 65:11 72:18,19
 80:12,13 83:8,21
officially 30:11
officials 11:22
oftentimes 4:16,20
older 44:15
oldest 4:5 27:9
ongoing 12:19 19:2
 32:22
open 63:21,25 64:5
 65:24
opening 15:12
operated 28:5
operation 23:6,17 25:23
 61:24
Operations 61:22
opportunities 31:4
 73:20
opportunity 10:10 19:4,
 16,17 21:16,21 26:5 29:3
 37:3 42:8 67:2 70:22
opposed 20:9,24 68:10
options 18:5 73:20
oral 26:16 77:2
order 14:11 61:24
Ordinances 31:12
organization 18:16
 83:2
organizations 23:3
Organize 28:2
organized 75:2
ourself 78:4
outpatient 82:14
Outreach 9:13
outstanding 13:14 29:4
 36:3,17 42:24 43:2 45:6

69:7 70:25 73:7
overcrowding 18:12
overlap 70:1
overload 14:18
overlooked 71:24
overly 68:23
oversight 7:2 22:25
 23:1,3,15 24:1
overview 59:25
Owners 28:14
owns 70:13

P

p.m 11:11
p.m. 15:6,8 40:21 76:21,
 24
P.O. 11:16 13:7,9,11,15
pack 64:5
package 26:3,4 75:20
packet 46:23
paper 44:7
parents 27:10 78:5,7,22
 79:3
parish 31:1
Park 53:6 70:17,22,23
part 18:25 26:4 38:16
 41:17 60:8 63:4 71:22
participant 34:12
participate 64:15
participated 26:8 40:14
partnering 18:16 62:5
partners 31:7 57:14
partnership 16:3 17:1,6
 61:25 64:19
party 10:20 41:18
pass 36:11 55:25 56:3

passed 38:4 50:21,22
passing 54:10,16 55:16, 20
past 25:21 26:13 40:25 56:17 80:25
pastor 30:8,9,12,15,20, 25 31:6 32:17 79:18
Pastoral 30:16
Patrol 33:22
patterns 23:6
Pauch 83:11,20
Paul 69:13
pause 37:18
PDU 69:13
people 3:8,14 6:20 7:16 8:15 10:12 18:20 26:7 32:17 33:1 34:8 36:23 41:17 48:17 53:12 55:1, 16,25 56:22 59:1 63:8 64:1 66:14 69:3 70:11,24 72:17 73:3,18 74:3,5 75:3 78:23 80:10 81:1
People's 83:2
perform 58:1,9,14
performing 9:14
performs 9:15
period 25:2 56:19 57:3 61:12
permanent 58:8
permanently 49:22 57:17
perpetrator 39:16
person 12:17,18 22:2 53:5,6 71:13 74:6
person's 80:1,2
personal 18:1 26:13 27:6 47:7
personnel 24:9 43:19 44:2 47:23

persons 18:1,7 32:19,25 82:17
perspective 23:23 54:11,20 59:5
perusal 53:18
petition 81:11
phenomenal 40:14 64:11 67:21
Phillip 71:17
phone 49:15
Phonetic 13:17 69:14 71:12 72:24
PHOTO 29:21 32:5 35:15 36:20
physical 48:24 49:10 50:21,23
physician 57:22 58:7
physicians 48:4
picture 45:19 54:21
piece 21:11
placards 42:5
place 19:21 34:22
places 18:9
plant 6:22
planting 34:18
played 79:23
playing 9:14
plays 19:20
pleased 73:1
pleasure 11:25 20:14 59:20
plenty 5:6 34:2
point 26:2 41:22 58:15, 25
points 49:13 50:16 53:21 54:25 55:2,3,4,5,6, 10
police 3:10,16 4:3,5,6,7,

8,10,12,19 5:4,7,9 6:18 7:1,10,15,18 8:7,9,10,14, 22 10:15 13:5,11 15:2,4, 21,22 16:3,8,13 17:1,4,7, 13,23 18:17 21:3,12,17, 22 22:10,11,23,25 23:4, 6,7,8,11,13,14,16,19 24:12,13,16 27:22 28:19, 24 29:8,10,18 31:15,17, 24 34:14 35:3,5,11,20 36:8 38:19 39:20,24 40:11 41:2 42:25 43:20 44:2,6,9 45:3,8,16 46:13, 17 47:1,5,13,19,20 48:10,13,23 49:24 57:8, 13,20 58:9 63:5,9,15 65:12 66:15 67:12,15,19, 20 68:5,8,13,16,17,19 69:2 71:13 74:4,8,25 80:24 81:5,8,18,24 83:2, 7,16,20,25
policing 23:10,23
policy 9:19 23:19
Polly 9:25 10:5
Port 27:17,19
portion 14:10
position 25:5 57:24 58:13
positions 8:13 48:2,3,6, 8,9,10,19 50:12,18 52:13 57:16
possibilities 17:15
possibly 7:15 83:5
post 70:18
power 24:3 33:24 64:5 81:20
Powerpoint 18:6
PPOS 62:17
practice 23:8 84:16
pray 4:11,16
prayer 5:18
prayers 39:1,19 40:4 42:16 52:2

preacher 32:6
precinct 4:7 12:16 16:8, 16 17:19 22:1 24:18,20, 23 26:3,6 27:24,25 28:15,23,25 29:16 31:22 32:8 33:21 34:11,13 35:8 41:11 59:12,14,21 60:1 61:7,17,21 62:16 63:3, 12,17 65:5,9,20,23 67:20 68:21,22,23,25 69:1,10 70:1,3,6,12,23,25 76:24 77:1 81:12
Precinct's 34:17 62:20
precincts 16:12 17:14 40:14 45:6 67:4
preference 55:12
prep 77:14
prepare 49:2 50:24,25
prepared 49:2
preparing 48:23
presence 4:19
present 8:14 10:3 33:6 73:16,23
presentation 9:24 16:22 24:17 59:23
presentations 24:8 63:11
presented 35:24
presenter 33:3
presenting 46:23 59:21
presently 28:16
Preservation 33:24
preserve 81:18
president 15:20 16:7 31:6 32:23 36:13
pretty 64:8 84:2
previously 55:17
preying 61:16
principle 24:1

principles 24:2,6
print 26:17 72:5
prior 9:5 68:24
privilege 27:4
probationers 62:3
problem 10:21
problems 7:3
proceedings 85:2
process 24:3 26:10,22
 49:8,9 55:4 58:11 77:5
processing 24:12 33:11
Procurement 31:11
professional 25:8
profile 21:15 58:16
program 15:18 17:1,3,
 12 51:11,15 62:20,21
 63:16 66:25 67:6,10
 70:13
programs 16:3 51:13
 62:15 64:22
progression 78:15
Progressive 62:7
project 46:18
projects 34:13
promote 21:22
promoted 13:13
promotional 50:2
promotions 53:19
pronouncing 15:15
 72:25
proof 75:16
proper 50:14
properly 20:6,19 37:22
 47:11 50:24
property 60:6
prosecution 62:25
protect 23:2

protecting 39:2
proud 17:10 27:10
 45:12,16,22
provide 3:17 14:23 16:2
 22:24 23:15,21 38:22
 42:11 57:21 58:19 62:23
 66:18 80:9
provided 54:7 55:1
providing 9:8 47:24
 54:1 63:24
proving 20:12
psychiatric 80:17
psychological 80:3
psychosis 80:11
public 8:6 23:9 26:21
 34:10 72:6 76:21 77:2,3
 84:16
pull 61:22
purchase 34:25
Purifoy 69:14
purpose 44:1 71:18
 72:1
pushups 49:1
put 54:20 55:24 57:17
 67:25 72:24 75:21
puts 7:12
putting 58:6

Q

quality 23:12,22 29:15
 31:21 36:4
quarter 17:9
question 5:1 43:15 45:4,
 11 52:12,18 54:9,10,15,
 21 55:3,14,15 66:24
questions 40:6 41:4
 43:13 52:7,8 54:6 65:24,
 25 67:13 68:21
quickly 61:9

Quinn 9:7
quorum 6:7 14:9,10,12
 19:25 20:1

R

Rabbit 28:5 29:13,20
Radio 72:6
raining 22:14
raised 8:3
range 80:4
ranks 48:13 49:3
rate 48:5 60:18
re-elected 21:5
re-evaluation 56:23
reach 19:12
reaching 42:17 64:16,18
read 35:23 79:11
reading 56:2
ready 49:25 79:19
real 13:8 67:25 68:3
 70:15
realize 3:24
reason 69:19
reassigned 43:23
reassignment 25:11
rebellious 78:18
receive 23:16 24:11,14
 37:19 79:5
received 44:12 76:3
Receiving 79:22
recent 25:13
recently 14:25 39:14,21
 63:16
recognition 29:4 36:2
recognize 13:3 42:5
 69:25 70:6

recognized 35:22
record 9:5 77:24
recorded 44:18
recount 81:11,14
recover 39:3
recovery 18:20
recruit 45:13 50:8 59:1
 74:3 75:2,3,5,15,23
recruiter 48:12
recruiters 49:12,13 50:7
 59:13 73:15 75:7
recruiting 7:11,14,19
 8:15,17 48:11,14,18 49:4
 52:21 71:6,9,12,17,23
 72:2,12,22 73:2,12,19,24
 75:13,15
recruitment 8:11,21
 24:12 54:25 55:24 58:24
 59:12
recruits 40:18 72:4
recuperate 39:7
recuperating 39:6,8,9,
 10,12
redraft 76:3,7
reduction 38:8,10,13,16
Reed 30:1,3,6,7,10,12,
 15,20,25 31:6,19 32:3,6,
 17 59:18 84:11
reflect 78:10
reflecting 24:25
reflections 78:4
refreshments 16:17
regard 29:17 31:23 80:2
regional 42:10,11
regrets 11:2
regular 15:4
regularly 73:17
rehab 39:13

related 14:24 24:15
relates 16:13 43:5
relating 25:13
relations 28:16 69:2
 71:14
relief 80:14
relocated 25:22
remain 42:20 82:22
remained 28:9
remark 19:17
remarks 3:23 6:15 14:23
 21:1 22:19 24:20 35:17
remember 32:6 39:4
 66:4
renovated 25:22
renovation 25:20
Rep 26:14
replacement 47:9
report 11:4 14:13 24:9,
 11,17,24,25 25:15,24
 26:6 38:7,24 40:9 41:3
 47:15,24 51:4 52:6 54:7
 56:12 58:22 59:2 61:14
 67:17,18 70:25 71:4 76:2
reporter 9:9
reporting 25:1 47:5
reports 71:3
represent 3:11 6:12
 55:5
representative 12:9
representatives 11:22,
 23 12:24
represents 11:24 12:17
 68:9
request 25:10 43:20,21,
 25
required 33:14 57:20
requirements 48:21,22

resent 26:8
reserve 11:4
residency 50:15 51:4
resident 8:3 55:11
residents 23:12 50:12,
 14 52:15,16,20 53:20
 54:11,16 81:9
resolution 27:7 29:25
 30:5 32:19 33:6
resolutions 26:24 37:20
RESOLVED 29:8 31:15
 35:3
resources 9:23 24:10
 55:25 56:1 57:9 62:24
 63:24 64:1
respect 23:10 77:5
respectfully 43:25
 53:17
respond 43:10 55:15
responders 41:24
responding 30:11
response 83:18
responsibilities 76:8
responsible 25:19 37:8
rest 38:10 67:3
Restore 61:24
restricted 51:21,22
 56:16,17,19,22,23,25
 57:4,7,11,15 58:3
result 55:1
results 38:18
resumes 82:18
Retired 39:24
retiree 6:21
retirement 57:19 58:7
retirements 51:20
retiring 28:3,5 56:20,24

return 25:15 43:22
Returning 34:22
Rev 30:10
Reverend 82:25 83:17
review 24:25 26:6
reviewed 49:21
reviewing 23:5
revising 81:2
reward 35:23
rid 37:11
ride-alongs 4:11
right-hand 9:18
rights 23:3
river 21:7 73:6
Riverwalk 74:7
Road 21:8
robberies 60:3 61:12,
 16,19 67:24 68:14
robbery 38:13
Robert 9:10
robust 38:23
role 3:23 4:18 5:14 6:15
 7:1 12:6 19:21
roll 4:8,11 34:14 67:2
rolling 67:8
room 21:10 40:22 51:16
 77:15
Roth 13:7,9,11,15 33:7,
 9,14,20 34:2,4,12,19,24
 35:7,13 36:1,21 37:5
 84:12
Roth's 34:6
roughly 17:7
round 12:25 14:1
row 9:17,20
Royal 33:13

run 32:10 61:24
running 12:2 49:1
 59:18,19

S

Sacred 75:21
sad 39:22 40:4
safe 42:20
safety 14:20 76:21 84:16
Salvation 65:11
Samaritan 16:15
San 80:7
satisfied 76:4
Saturday 40:3
save 7:24 81:5
scenario-based 63:10
scheduled 50:19,22
scheduling 25:24
school 8:5 27:12,13,14,
 16 30:13 31:3 33:10,11
 65:6
Scotty 79:9 80:21
Scream 28:6
seat 37:4
seated 9:11
seats 3:10 15:10
seconded 37:23
secretary 9:2 76:10
security 46:22
sees 30:25
seize 42:8
self-introduction 11:11
semi 56:18
Senator 80:17
send 39:19 48:14 62:9
 73:13

sending 78:9
sends 11:2
seniors 32:10 69:3
sensitive 78:2,8 79:1
sensitivity 79:1
separated 51:18
Separation 24:3
separations 24:14
September 65:17 73:23
76:24
sergeant 9:6 39:9,25
69:13 71:12,16,19,20,24
72:14
serve 3:11 4:8 28:16
served 30:7 37:5
service 12:19 19:5,12
25:7,19 29:14 31:20 72:6
80:9
services 9:7 15:14,18
16:1 17:14 34:16 63:15
80:12
servicing 18:13 21:5,6
30:9
session 15:4
sessions 65:18
set 67:3
Seventy-nine 49:7
severe 18:1,2
severely 82:13
sexual 38:13 44:15 66:5,
6,8
shape 75:5
share 58:15,18 59:8
she'll 10:2
Sherry 15:20
shift 34:15
SHOOT 29:21 32:5
35:15 36:20

shooting 4:13
shootings 38:15 46:3
60:11,15,19 61:8
shop 65:15 66:12,17
short-term 58:5
shout 16:9
show 4:21 6:9 16:1
50:14 68:14
showed 54:18
shown 61:4 66:7
shows 72:7,8
Shukur 14:25 39:14
52:1,2
shutting 18:10
side 9:18,21 69:16
sides 78:3,22
signed 29:18 31:24
35:11,22 36:5
simply 76:13
Sinai-grace 30:16
single 44:1 67:10
sir 4:3 5:12,19 10:15
11:5 13:15,24 42:22
43:11 46:12 47:13 53:22
56:14 57:4 59:7,10 66:3,
22 67:15
sit 77:18
sitting 21:2 84:1
situation 39:22 62:23
situations 42:18
Sixty-eight 50:20
Sixty-seven 51:23,24
Sixty-two 50:22
size 5:2
slight 38:14 66:7
slogan 30:23
small 75:21

smaller 53:10
Smith 39:8 79:10 80:22
82:1,3
soak 78:9,15 79:5
social 62:16 65:15 82:8,
10
something's 65:1
sort 5:13 21:24 70:1
Southwest 8:4
souvenir 13:14
speak 24:19 26:23 76:6
79:8 83:24 84:1
speaker 46:4 70:20
77:11 79:11 84:3
speaker's 26:18
speakers 77:14
speaking 4:1 29:9 31:16
35:4 44:7 59:12
Special 61:22
specific 58:2
specifically 52:22 81:4
speedily 38:24
spent 8:4 72:4
spirit 29:14 30:8,22
31:20 35:6,22,24 36:13,
15
Spivey 22:3,8,17,18
36:7,10 65:7,17 70:11
spoke 41:22 79:20 80:5
sponsored 70:14
spread 73:12
Squad 28:4 44:12
Squatter 64:23
Stabenow 80:17
staff 9:3,6 10:3 11:7,12
21:22 47:19,21 69:9
70:12 80:8
Stafford 39:25

stage 45:17
stand 4:6 12:25 13:4
16:9 69:10 81:21
standing 5:18 16:4 71:3
74:5
Stanton 10:8
Starr 71:23,24
start 6:14 7:8 11:9 18:20
38:7 43:16 47:25 59:17
started 17:8 21:5 30:13
starting 5:20 82:10
starts 16:18 48:1
stat 62:8
state 8:5 19:7 26:14
41:25 64:2,3 68:12
stated 25:21 65:14
statements 44:18
States 80:16
stations 43:1
statistics 68:1
stature 16:13
status 25:2 42:11
statute 36:14
stay 32:17 56:19 82:23
stead 9:13
steady 61:13
steeler 28:19
step 41:23 42:1 43:19
stepping 25:5
stipulate 57:14
stories 78:25
Straight 73:5
stranger 13:12 65:12
strategies 24:22 61:2
strategist 61:21
strategize 75:2

Street 29:2 76:22
streets 61:23 80:8
stress 37:12 80:14
Strikeforce 28:3
strong 6:25 29:19 78:17
struck 39:14
students 31:3
study 79:18
style 25:8
subcommittee 52:21
subject 19:2 40:10
subject's 44:16
submit 53:17
success 38:10 78:25
suffer 80:11
suffered 39:4
suffering 18:1,7
suggest 73:15 74:1
suggested 72:16 73:11
suggests 73:2
sum 38:13
summer 27:15 40:20,25
Summit 63:5,14
Sunday 30:13 75:19
supervise 22:25
Supervising 10:6
support 4:9,18,19,21
 14:19 18:24 20:5,18
 25:19 29:12 31:19 84:19,
 22
supported 4:23 20:7,20
 84:24
supporting 23:9 35:8
surprise 36:22
swing 9:19
sworn 48:2,6,9,18,19,21

49:4 50:11 51:3,5,8,18,
 20,22 52:13,22,23

T

table 26:18 75:21
Tactical 27:25
taking 9:7
talk 16:2,25 22:13 45:14
 52:22 60:25 64:23 67:23
 68:3 72:7,8 73:1 74:25
 79:25
talked 72:10,22 74:24
talking 28:8 37:12 45:24
 68:1 70:15 75:24
tankards 42:6
tardiness 22:9
target 61:23 66:17 72:8
targets 17:20
Task 83:2
tax 23:21
teaching 30:13
team 46:9 70:16 75:12
technical 16:23 27:16
Teen 17:22
television 72:7
telling 67:1 75:7
tells 48:22,25 50:15,25
temporarily 49:18,19
ten 29:18 31:25 40:1
 51:23 52:5 60:24
term 8:9
terms 3:25 5:13 12:6
 13:5 19:8 26:22 32:18
 48:23,25 58:25 59:4 68:2
 70:4 76:8
test 48:24 49:9,10 50:20,
 21 55:25
testing 49:7 50:19 51:1

52:23,25 53:3
thanking 34:15 84:10
Thanksgiving 15:3
theft 60:8
Theology 30:17,19
Theresa 9:13 26:19
 71:13
thing 7:15 55:21,23
 60:20 75:18 78:2
things 8:12 42:6,15,21
 46:8,13 55:24 63:2 72:3
 73:25 74:7 78:14
thinking 77:23,25 78:12
 80:4
thirty-two 51:19
Thornton 70:2
thought 46:14 54:24
 71:14
throw 78:23
Thursday 15:5,7 76:20,
 23
Thurston 39:12
tie 61:15
time 4:12 8:14 14:6,14
 15:13 16:25 19:11 21:19
 37:20 41:10 56:19 57:2
 58:2,16 59:13 63:17
 64:11 72:5 75:24 76:3,6
 77:5,6,17 78:1 82:4
timely 16:17,19
times 63:22 64:20
Tireman 73:4
TMU 27:25
today 3:12 10:14 15:9
 18:25 24:8 32:1 54:8
 61:14
told 11:2
tonight 59:23 84:10
tonight's 9:6,24 10:6
 76:14

top 59:13
total 38:11 48:4 49:6
 51:2,5 55:4 60:8
totals 81:1
touch 30:20 48:17 50:9
 72:24
touched 82:15
tough 16:5 63:6
Towing 28:5
Tracy 44:11
tragic 39:21,23,24
trained 17:10 41:24
 73:18
training 17:4 42:5,10,11,
 12 46:7,8 65:18
transparency 24:5
trauma 39:10
Treat 34:23 65:19
treating 18:19
treatment 6:22 80:8
trend 18:7 55:21,23 56:4
 60:1 61:4 66:7
trending 61:5
trends 59:25
Trucks 28:6
true 10:14 69:5
Trunk 34:23 65:19
trust 23:10
Tuesday 40:13 80:25
turn 27:2 64:9 69:16
twenty 31:8
twenty-seven 49:17
 51:17
two-fold 17:3
type 4:13 19:5 23:5
 47:12 65:3 69:4 81:20
types 34:18 64:11

Tyrone 26:14

U

U-SNAP-BACK 31:9

U.S. 28:6

Uh-hmm 68:18

undergird 4:24

understand 25:14
28:22 67:24 78:17 84:9

understanding 10:13

understood 54:8

unexpectedly 39:25

unintelligible 24:4
25:20 46:15,17 65:18

union 57:14

unique 23:23

Unit 27:25 28:1,4 83:22

United 73:10 80:16

Units 62:7

Unity 73:4 79:16,19

universities 51:13

University 8:5

UNKNOWN 46:4 70:20

unnecessary 23:8

unpack 67:22 68:10

upcoming 17:20 65:13

update 25:10,13,20
38:22 41:21 46:14 57:21

updated 45:2

upgrade 25:23

uptake 67:23

uptick 38:14

upward 56:4 66:7

utilizing 61:23

V

vacant 8:13 44:25 48:6

vacation 43:22

vain 47:8

valuable 77:23

van 80:8

vehicle 39:6,15 60:8

vertically 47:16

vet 81:16

veteran 55:12

veterans 55:12

Veterans' 33:19

viable 79:1

vice 15:14 19:14,22 30:1
62:6

Vice-chair 33:4

victim 62:22

victim's 62:17

victimimized 63:1

victims 61:9

Victoria 72:24 74:24

video 16:1,22 79:23
80:13

viewing 3:14,15

viewpoint 23:23,25

vigilant 65:21

Village 33:23

Village-cornerstone
33:22

violations 62:4,5

violators 62:6

violence 62:19,23

violent 60:4

violently 78:16

VIPS 12:24

vision 31:18

visit 45:14

visitors 77:22

visual 9:8

vital 81:6

voice 63:14

volunteer 7:17 84:14

volunteering 65:8

vote 80:25

voted 81:1

W

wait 40:8

waiting 16:6

Waldis 39:3

Walk 64:23

walks 69:4

wall 74:20

wanted 45:15 46:14
50:11 59:2 68:10 78:21
79:16,20,23 81:10 82:16

wanting 68:4

waste 6:22 16:24

watching 80:12

water 6:21,22

wave 78:12,13

Wayne 8:5 17:15 74:25

ways 4:10

weapon 62:14

weather 19:20

website 48:20 50:16,24
81:15

Wednesday 16:14

week 4:22 9:12 15:2
34:14 39:23 50:1,3 61:13

weekend 40:11

weekly 61:25

weeks 15:4,5 39:24

Weinert 44:11

wellbeing 80:3

Western 8:5

westside 19:15

whereabouts 44:17

White 9:19 10:5,12,25
11:1,6,9,13,18,20 14:23
24:25 25:12,18 37:3,13,
14 38:5,6 40:10 43:10,12
51:11,25 69:6 79:15

wide 80:4

wife 32:11

wiggler 16:4

willed 78:17

William 6:2,18

Williams 9:9 25:3,4,7,10
43:6,17,18 47:7 71:16

Williams' 25:11

Willie 3:11 6:5,6

win 26:9

winds 18:11

winners 26:9

witnesses 44:17 61:10

woman 45:19

womb 78:10 79:2

women 34:8,22 48:13

wonderful 8:15

Woods 22:9

word 73:13

words 64:12

work 7:9,17 8:24 9:8
10:12 17:24 23:9,15,18
25:24 32:22 34:22 36:17
38:9,17,18,21 42:20
44:10 57:8 68:25 76:7

82:10,12,23 83:3
worked 6:21 7:12 27:20,
23 33:15 46:9 82:11,12
worker 62:16 71:23 82:8
working 7:11 8:10,12,23
11:25 17:7,8,13 26:11
29:6 30:21 61:21 62:11
67:6 75:12
works 62:18 83:3
world 26:11
worthwhile 78:25
wound 39:5,7,8
Wow 34:3
write 31:11
writing 21:13
written 48:24 49:9 50:20
55:16
wrong 12:14 65:1
wrongly 83:3
Wyandotte 53:6
Wyrick 9:20

X

Xavier 45:21

Y

ya'll 32:6,7
year 5:4 12:1 17:9,20
25:14 28:24 39:20 43:8
44:4,6,10 48:1,8 49:6
60:9,12,13,14,15,16,17,
18,22,23,24 68:9,10
72:11
year's 60:21
year-to-date 38:12
60:5,13 61:20
yearly 34:16
years 6:22 8:4 12:1 17:8

18:22 27:18 33:16,18
35:7
yesterday 46:19 64:15
79:18 81:11
York 29:4 33:10,11
44:12,19
Yorkshire 22:9
young 10:11 28:8 48:12
52:12 63:18 64:4 66:14,
25 69:3 72:11 73:17
79:20,25 80:5 83:25
youth 64:18 65:18